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RCl Life Limited
Annual repert and financial statements from 1 Januzry 2023 fo 31 Degember 2023

Directors’ Report

The. Directors' present the annual. repert and:the-audited financial statements-of RC{ Life lelted (the “Cumpany ) for.the
year ended 31 Decémber 2023.

Principal attivities

The Company's’ principal actwlty is that of carrying on’ long-term busingss of insurance falling: W|th1n Class 1:and. Class 4 of
thé Insurance Business Act Cap. 403 of the L.aws. of Malta,

'Revie‘w of the business.

This.is the fourteenth year of operation of the Company, with the Company wriing direct insurance- busingss. i in. Germany,
France, Italy, Spam Austria and Portugal,

Dunng {he year. ended 31 December 2023 the Company wrote @ total net insurance service result of £85,338, 746 up by
21.86% compared 1o that written durlng 2022 4t €53,617,541. This i the first pregentation”of the-resilts followmg the
transition from IFRS4 to IFRS7, which as Is explaingd in more: detailin. Note 2.2 has created:an impact on-the. figures as
from this year.

The Company's net; mvestment income increassd by 559% to €5,121,891 in 2023 (2022; €777 452} The inerease-is mainly
due to the favorable market conditions' and the increase of the interest rates. The total impairment loss for 2023 amounted
to £208,640'whign comipared to €198,798 for 2022..

The total profit'for the.year after tax amountéd to €45,803,865 (2022 £35,356 ?45) The increase in profitability is mainly
attributable to the factors as explalned abiove.

The Shareholders' Funds of the Company at€109,733,618 (2022 re-stated: £98,686,066 increased by 11.12% resulting
fiom better profit aftér tax registered during: the year under review and also.a capltal contnbutlon of €4, 539; 955 made during
the year 2023 (2022: €6,052,515).

As of -1-January 2016, the’ Solvency” || Directive: (2009/138/EC) came inda force with new regulatory requirements that
ascertain the level of captta[ required on the basis of the risks the Ccmpany undertakes. Salvency |l alsc outlines-how the
own funds shall be-derived by converting the Statement of Financial Position from-an IFRS perspechve {0.6ine'where assefs
and liabilities:are'-measured in line with their underlying econgmic value. As from this date, the solvency-calcutations urider
Selvency | regime are no longer applicable.

Based on the-audited Solvency Capital Reqwrements ( SCR) calcu!at:cns as at 31 December 2023; the Gompany. has
complied ‘with the capital and. solvericy requiirements as: stipuiated in the rules issued by the MFSA. Gomg forward; the
Company-is also expected to continug meeting the Solvency- )l reguirements; based on the: pro;ected SCR calculatlons
included in the: 2023 Own Risk-and Solvency Assessment {*ORSA") report.

Principal risks

The Company is. exposed to'a:mixed. blend of risks: énd hence operates a risk management strategy with the cbjective of
controfiing and: minimising their impact on the. ﬁnanclal performance and: position of the Company,

An established risk governance framewark-and ownership ‘strutture ensures oversight of accountability for the efféctive
management of risk. In line with the Solvency i framewnrk the Ccmpanys risk management framework fosters: the
continuous. momtonng ofthe risk environment and an integrated avéluation of risks-and théir interactions.

The Company's fisk management framework is deagned to prowde appropnate sk monitorlng and assessment.
Spec:ll'"icallyt the: Company’s main risks &ra- insurance risk, credit risk, market sk and Equidity risk. A detailed reviéw of the
risk management polices employed by the-Company are disclosed | in Note 8. While disclosures’ relating to exposures to
ingurance risk, credit rigk, Tiquidity risk and markst risk. arg'included in:Note 18, These are also supplemented by Note 2.5
relating to the significant accounting policies.




RCI Life Limited
Annual report and financial statements from 1 January 2023 to 31 December 2023

Directors’ Report- continued

Future developments

The Board has considered the Company's operational performance and position as at year end, as well as business plans
for the upcoming years. In line with this, the Board has a reasonable expectation that the Company has adequate resources
to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future. For this reason, in preparing the financial statements, the
Board continues to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the financial statements.

Post balance sheet events

There were no important events or transactions which took place after the financial reporting date which would require
disclosure or adjustment to the financial statements.

Results and dividends

The results for the year are set out in the Profit and Loss on pages 5 and 6. During the year, the Board declared and paid
out an interim dividend of €41,272,406 (2022: €40,350,098). The Directors do not recommend the payment of a final
dividend.

Directors

The Directors of the Company who held office during the year were;
Mr Patrick Claude

Mr Thomas Groleau

Mr John Bonett
Mr Pierre-Yves Francois Philippe-Beaufils (resigned on 26th February 2024)

Auditors

At the 2023 Annual General Meeting, a resolution was presented proposing the appointment of Mazars Malta as Auditors
as from the financial year ending 31 December 2023. The Directors take the opportunity to express their gratitude to Mazars
Malta for their service to the Company and the Shareholders.

By order of the Board

(T ? . g )\“"” s
\ it I
Thomas Groleau Patrick Claude
Director Director

Registered office

Level 3, Mercury Tower

The Exchange Financial & Business Centre,
Triq Elia Zammit, St.Julian’s STJ 3155
Malta

19% April 2024
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Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities for the financial
statements

The Dirgctors are required by the. Companies Act (Cap: 386 of the Laws of Malta) nd the Insurarice Business Act (Cap. 403
of the Laws of Malia) to prepare financial statements in-accordance with Interriational Financial Reporting Standards
CIFRSS") as. adopted by the EU, which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company at the end of each
firancial year and of the profit or loss of the: Company for the’ year Hhen-ended. In preparing the financial statemerits, the
Directors shoulg:

» select suitable accounting pultmes and apply them consistently;

» ‘thake Judgements and estimates that are reasonab[e

»  prepare the financial statemenis on a going concerh basis, uriless it is nappropriate t6 ptesume that the
Cormipany will confinue in business-as agoing-canéern; ' ' '

¢ -acgcount for inconie and charges relating to the. accoun{mg year-on.the aceryals basis;
value separately the compepents of assatand. Itablllty items;. and
report-comparative figures corresponding tothese of the preceding accounting year.

The Directors are respansible for ensuring that proper-accounting records 4re kept which'disclose with réasonable. accuracy
at any:-time the financial position: 'of the Company and which ‘enablé the Directors.to ensure that the financial statements
comply with. the Companies Act {Cap. 386 of the Laws. of Mailta) and the Insurance Business Act. {Cap. 403 of the Laws of
Malta) This respons:bmty incledes desugnlng. implementing and malntainlng such internal controt as the Directors: determlne
is necessary to enatile the preparation of financial statements that'are freiefrom material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or grror. The Directors. are-also résponsible for safeguarding the assets of the Gomparniy, dnd’ hence-for taking reasonable:
sieps for the prevention and detection:of fraud. and other irregularities.




REI Lifé: Linited

Annual repoft and financidl statements fram 1 January 2028 {0 31 December 2023

Statement of Profit and Loss

CSM recogrized for services provided

Change in-tisk adjustment for nonsfinancial risk for risk expired

Expected insurance service expenses incurred;
Cldims
Expenses.

Recovery of insurance acquisition cash flows

TOTAL INSURANCE REVENUE

Incurred insurance $ervice expenses’
Lidims

-Expenses”

‘Qlhér hovements reigted 1o.cutrent service.

-Amortisation of insurance acquisition cash flows

‘Changes that refate to past service:
‘Changes n-estimales in LIG fulfitment cash. flows
‘Experience adjistments in Slelms and:sther Insurance servicé expenses. }n L!C

Changes that relate to future service:
Lossesand reversal of losses on onerous confradls- subsequient measurement

TOTAL INSURANCE SERVICE EXPENSES

‘Net Expenses from Reinsurance Contracts
Allocation of the premiums paid

Amounts recovered from reinsurance:
Incurred insurance service expenses:

Claims
. Cther movements refated To-cufrant Service )

Changes that rélate to past service (changes in fult” tment cash

flows re LIC):
R Changes fn estimates.in LIC fulfilment cash flows
Experience: ad;uslmem‘s in claims. and Gther insurarice service expenses in LIC

Total net expenses from reinsurance contracts

INSURANCE SERVICE RESULT

Year.ended 31 Décember

2023 2022

-~ réstated

€ €
64,062,367 63,484,632
3,046:276. 3,203,336
36,435,642 "26,882,994.
31,446:536° 21.772:432
4,987 10% 5910;567
89,182,198 87,193,630
193,626,483 180,764,592
(39,404,511). {43,034,742)
(40,745,408}

4) {(5,919,501)

568 flit:] 3,660, ‘-‘65
(89,182,138) 87,193,630y
5,567,224 5,637,238
5,727,918 7,079,767
439,306 1,442:529)
(532,255) {178,072)
(532,255} (175,072
123,561,740).  (124.766,206)
(4,941,481 (6:519,564)
1,446,790 3,773,290
3,787,370 7,925,252
3,862 26T B; 766693
{74,891)" (835,44%)
{2,340,580) (4,151,962}
- r2 158,988} ) (4 440 ;285)
(141,592} 288,333
(3,494,691) 2,746,274)
66,580,052 58,252,410




RC] Life. Limited
-Annual feport and flnancial statements from { Janlary 2023 to-31 December2023

Statement of Profit and LosS - continued

‘Year énded 31 December

" .2023 2002
Naotes - restated
€ £
INSURANCE S_ERVI'CE' RESULT - c:o:]t'_i'l"iued 6_6;_5_'80-,0'5'2 53,252,110
:gzggnce:ﬁn_ajnce income orexpenses from insurance contracts (1,346,498) 204,909
Inteiest accrefod o the carrying afiieunt of iie CSM' {2,172124) ‘60894
tiiterest. acorated.on present value-cash fiows. 921,478 {422,198)
tnferast accretet.on fisk atjustment. {95.852} 7,113
The effect of fifiancial risk and.changes in financial risk 17 .
Total Insurance Finance Income or Expense from Insurance . . _
Contiacts (1,346,481} 204,809
Insurance finance income. or expenses from: reinsurance N N
contracts issued 108,792 160,522
Anfarestacerelid o on.the Cafrying amount-of the CSM 10,023 521
Intérast-accreted on prasent value cash flows: 88,470 145,908
Interes acérefed on Ask adjustmient 8,299 14.093
The effect of financial risk'and changes:in financial risk- (807} -
Total Insurance. Finance Income or Expense from Relnsurance PP i
Contracts 106,155 160:522
NET FINANCIAL RESULT {1,240,296) 365,431
:'NET [NSURANCE SERVlCE RESULT (EXCLUDING INVESTMENT 65,339,756 536']7541
RETURN}
NET INVESTMENT INCOME 15. 5,121,891 777,462
PROFIT BEFORE TAX 70,461,647 54,394,993
INCOME TAX EXPENSE 18 {24,657,782) (1 9_}.038;24?-)
‘PROFIT FOR THE FINANGIAL YEAR 45,803,865 35,356,745

The accompanying accounting poficies and explanatory notes on pages 11 lo 50 form.an-inlegral part of ihe financial statsments,




_ RCl Life Limited
Annual repoit and financial staternents from 1. January 2023 19.31 December 2023

Statement of Comprehensive Income

Yearended 31 December

2023 2022
-restated
€ €

PROFIT FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR (page 7) 45,803,865 35,356,745

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Net gain on.investments in debt sécurities meéasured at FVOCH 2,308,341 (4,953,700)
Finance expenses from insurance contracts issued 167,743 (714,852)
Finance income from teinsurance coniracts issued 563,180 (1.214,865)
income fax relating to these ifems gbove {1,063,746) 2,408,195

-f.g';l:‘l_ﬁ.'COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR, NET 1_,9'75',-_52'_8'_' (4!474;2-2.1)

TOTAL- COMPREHENSIVE INCOME. FOR THE YEAR. TO:

'ORDINARY SHAREHOLDERS 47,779,394 30,882:525

Tha accompanying accounting poficies.and explanatory hotes on pages 11 1o-50 form &n infegral part of the financial statements.




‘RCI Life Limited
1 December 2023

Annual report and financial statements from 1. January 202363

Statement of Changes in Equity

Sharehclders equity as af 1 January 2022

Adjustmient oninilial-appligation:of IFRS17, net of tax
Shareholders equity as at 1.January 2022,
restated

Profit-for the year.

-Other comprehignsive ingome

Dividends:paid _

‘Capital:contribution

Re-stated Closifig:Balarice - 31 December 2022

Profit-for the year

Other comprehensive income
Dividends paid

“Capital confribution

‘Closing Balance -31 December 2023

‘Share
‘Capital
€

5,900,000

Retained
Eamiings

31,233,328

'Capital

Contribution
Reserve
€

. Qther
reserves
€

8,206

Total equity

£

57.141,549

- 44,850,576 - - 44950576

5500000 96,192,864 - 8226 102,401,925
- 85356745, - - 35,356,746
. - < (4474221 (4474,22)
- (40.350,098) - = .(49,350,008)
- - 8.052,515

8,052,515

-5,900,000:

91,169,646,

8,052,515

98,668,066

5,900,000

91,189,546

6,062;515

{4,465,905)

98,686,086

-A5,B03,866

(41,272,408)

4,539,965

1,075,528

45,803,865
1,975,528

(41,272,406)
4,539_,-'93_5

5,300;00.

95,731,005

10,592,480

(2:490,467)

109,733,018

The:aceompanying accouditing piolicias and expi’én_a’fcr}: notes on pages 11 to:50 forni an Integral part of the firancial statements,
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RCI Life Limited

Annual report and financial statements from 1 January 2023 to 31 December 2023

Balance Sheet

ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents
Financial investments

Loans and receivables
Reinsurance contract assets
Insurance and other receivables
Deferred tax asset

Property, plant and equipment

Total assets

EQUITY

Capital and reserves attributable to shareholders
Share capital

Capital contribution

Other reserves

Retained Earnings

Total equity

LIABILITIES

Current income tax liabilities
Insurance and other payables
Insurance contract liabilities
Deferred tax liabilities

Total liabilities

Total equity and liabilities

The accounting policies and explanatory notes on pages 11 to 50 form an integral part of the financial statements.

Notes

-3
N R

1"

13

As at 31 As at 31 As at 1
December December January
2023 2022 2022

- restated - restated

€ € €
83,518,612 83,791,741 87,915,330
98,064,260 87,075,681 70,761,583
83,500,000 77,000,000 91,000,000
10,908,689 23,558,859 43,233 644
26,634,038 21,052,410 15,019,843
1,414,394 2,474,346 27,214
314 7,537 11,306
304,040,307 294,960,574 307,968,920
5,900,000 5,900,000 5,900,000
10,592,480 6,052,515 -
(2,490,467) (4,465,995) 8,226
95,731,005 91,199,546 96,192,899
109,733,018 08,686,066 102,101,125
45,674,999 22,251,556 21,704,020
31,441,952 36,600,700 54,263,306
117,190,338 116,398,604 105,691,467
- 21,023,648 24,209,002
194,307,290 196,274,508 205,867,795
304,040,307 294,960,574 307,968,920

The financial statements on pages 5 to 50 were authorised for issue by the Board on 19" April 2024 and were signed on its

behalf by:

—

L P P T

Thomas Groleau
Director

Patrick Claude
Director
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Statement of Cash Flows

Year.ended 31 Deceriber

‘Operating activities

Cash generated from operating activities
friterést-received

Taxation paid

‘Net.cash from operating dctivities:

Investing activities
Purchase of financial investments, _
Redemption of financial Investments -on mafurity

Financing activities
Dividends paid
Capital Contribution paid

‘Net.cash-used infinancing activities

Net movement in cash and cash equivalerits

Notes

21

24

Cash and cash.equivalents - Beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents - End of year

The accoirpting policies and explanatory-notes an pages 11 to-50.form an integral part of the-financial:statements,

2023

€

69,457,003
4,512,379
{22,261,780)

2022
~rastated:
€

58,515,723
1,392,855
(21_,7"1_5}-.004}

51,707,602

38,194,574

-(85,748;280)

40,500,000

(74:570.580)
' 63;550,000

(15,248,290}

(8,020;580)

41,272,406

' 4,539,985

" 6,052,515

{36,732,441)

(34,297,583)

(273,129)

(4,123,589)

83;791,741

87,915,330

83,518,612

83,791,741

10



RCILife Lienited
Annual fepart and firiancial statements from-1 January 2023 to 31 December 2023

Notes to the Financial Statements
‘1. Corporate information

RCI Life Limited (the “Company Yis-alimited hablhty campany incorporated and domidiled in Malta. The Company's princigal
activity is that of carrying on long-term businéss of insuranice falhng withiin Glass. 1.8hd Class 4 of the Insiirance Business
_Act, Cap. 403-of the Laws of Maita:

The- registered office of the . Company is Level 3. Méféury Tower, The Exchange Financial & Busingss Centre, Triq Elia
“Zanimit, St.Julian’s, ST$ 3155; Malta. The financial stateménts 6f RC) Life Limited for the year ended 31 December 2023
‘were: authnnsed for issue in accordance with a resolution of the Directors on 19% Apnl 2{}24

RE] Life Limited is a whelly.owned subsidiary of RCI-Services Limited which-is registered-at’ “Level 3, Mercury Tower, The
Exchangé Financial & Business Centre, Trig Elia Zamimit, St.ulian's, ST 3155, Malta. The ultimaite parent company of RCI
Life'Limited is Renault S. A. which.is reglsiered at13, QualAIphonse Le Gal!o Boulogne Rillancourt, Hauts de Seing, France,
92100,

2.1 Basis of preparation

The fiiancial statements have beeh prépared on a historic cost basis except for financial investments that have been
measured at fair value,

Statement of compliance

The i nanmal statements of the Cnmpany have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards. ("JFRSs") as- adopted for use in the Eltopean Union, the Insurance. Busifiess Act and the Companies-Act, Cap.
403 and 386 of the-Laws of Malta respectively.

The Company presents’ its Bafance Sheet. ‘broadly in order.of llqmdlty An-analysis regarding. recovery or settlement within
twelve months-after the repurung date {current).-and more than 12 months-after the reporting date (non- clrréntyis: presented
within 1he notes to these finahcial statements;

Finangial assefs and financial liabilities-are offset and the net amount reported in‘the- Sfatemient of Financial Position only-
when there is-a legally enforceable nght 10, offset the-recogniséd amournits and there is. A intention to.settle on a fiet basis,.
or'io realise the asséts and settle the:liability smultaneously Income and expense will hot be offset in the: Profit and Loss
Statement Lrléss. fequired or permitted- by any accounting standard or interpretation, as speuﬁcally dlSG|OSEd iry the
accounting policies:of the Company.

2.2 Main IFRS requiremerits adopted on.January1, 2023

IFRS17— Insurance Contracts

Published on May 18, 2017 and ‘amended by the amendmeénts of Jung 25, 2020; sets ouf the: pnnc;ples of . recognition,
evaluation, presentation and information to be provided forinsurance contracts It replaces the: IFRS 4 standard - insurance
contracts and is applicable from January 1, 2023, It should: be roted that RCY Life had not rétainéd the proposéd exémiption
from application of the IFRS9 standard and was dlready applying it IFRS:9 standard:since January 1, 2018. The.introdugtion
‘of IFRS17 therefore Jeads 1o the discorilinuation of the overlay approach previously applied.

Imglementation at RCI Matlta

IFRS: 17 mainly -applies within- the group o msurance coniracts issued and reinsurance-freaties issued and/or held by the
-group's insurance companies, Given the natdre of insurance and reinsurance portfolios - contracts lasting mare than 1 year
with a:non-inear risk profile - their techinical provisions are evaluatéd according to.the general measurement model "GMM®
(knidwni s the "building blocks appioach’): including:
©{1) estimates of future cash flows discounted and- waghled by theit probahlhty of realization ¢ PV FCF");.
(2) anadjustment for non-financial fisk {* RA") and,:
(3) the contractual Service margin ("CSM").

There.is-no partlmpatory contract in the RCI Malta portfohc justifying the application of the *VFA. - Variable Fee Approach”
modél. No contract is evaluated accordmg to the "PAA - Premium allocation Apprazgch™ model, tgo.

11
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2.2 Main IFRS requirements adopted.on January 1, 2023 - continued

The' margin on contractual services {("CSM") will be reccgnlzed in the income- staterneni based on the coverage: units
provided over the period > "Coverage Units pattern”. A unitof coverage is the: quantity of coverage prowdec[ by the confracts
in the-group, deteérmined by considering for each centract the. quantity of the benefits provided under a. éontract and its.
expected caverage period. No enerous contracts have been identified by the group as part of the {ransition.

‘Annual.contract cohorts
In-accordance with the- standard, technicat. provisions are evaluated by homogeneous groups of contracts by: grouptng inta
arinual cahorts based on:

- -contracis carrying similar risk§ and managed together

~— ‘and part of the samg prof’tahllxty groop: i}

“The.insurance portfolio does not present a cohort of onerous contracts-at the date of transition.

Cagh flow (BE - Best Estimate)

The estimate of- fulure cash flows framinsurance partfolios are obtained by projec:tlng annual cohor‘ts of coritracts actarding
to rodels. which reflect the: behaviour” of insurance contracts. These projection models are based.on the same faundationis
asthose used for Solvency |l calculations. These maodels were the subject of an. external review:in 2023.

Risk Adjustment {RA)

The: non-financial risk. adjustment is ‘detérmined to compensate for the uncertesnty inherent in the amounts and timing- of
projecied cash flows. It is based on the observed distribition of the frequency of claims, representing the main risk factor of
the insurance portfalio and is calibrated-on guantile of 90%(80% of confidence intetval), congistent wiiki the risk appetite
rules arid the benchriark of ‘campanies with the-simiiar product parifolio. The risk adiustment is.amortized. accarding 4o the
same profile as the “CSM",

Contractual Service. Margin. {CSM)

The eontractual service margin represents the part of the profits made on the. insurance contracts taken out, which will be
deferred and progressively carriedforward toiincome statement over the estimated life of the insurance.contracts. itis defined
when coniracts are takeri-out ang evolves during thé life of-the confracts. depending on differences: in experience arid
hypotheses wlth what.was originally expected

Cover units

The coverage units make it possibleto measure the risk coverage: penods for revenue recognition (CSM), Thesé coverage
units are based on the risk profile of the annual cohorts of .contracts by considering the profile-of the: Sum-at-Risk. . Rigk
ad;ustment isalso recognized. ac:c:ordlng to the same:profile.

Discount rate.

The discount rates are defined Using the “botform-up” méthod to-which an |H|qu1dity premiurm is added on top of the risk-free.
rate curve defined by EIOPA. Hiiguidity premiunt has been derivad from Market price curve: by using:Merion-structurat credit
risk:mode] & CaC admstment for removing the “expected” default prebability-& credit risk premia for (un-)expected losses’
("tep dewn epproach")

OCI option
‘The-effect of financial risk and changes in fi nancial risk, due to the differerices. between locked-in and discaunt rates. ofthe’
‘reporting petiod, has been reported. through Equity - Other Gomprehenswe Income in Balance Sheet

Treatment of internal margtne
The treatment of internal margms corresponds-only to the restatement of distribution commissiens paid by the. group's.
-irisuranice comparies to-the-graup's subsidiaries.

Reievant accounting estimates

Al the-underlying technical assumptions for calculating future cash flows. from insurance: portfolios are defined based en
statistical studies on ‘portfolio data and’ refirésent the best estimate-of itiese elenients at the calcutation date.

The financial assumptions are based on data provided by the regulator and market data retained hy:the group.

The adoption of IFRS17 restiits in 51gn|ﬁcant accounteng changes, with an‘impact on RCI Life's balancé shest, profit and
loss, other comprehensive income and.cash flow. The nature and effects of these changes are sumimarized below,

12
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Anriual report:and financial statemerits from. 1. January 2023 to. 31 December 2023

‘2.2 Main IFRS requirements adopted on-January 4, 2023 - continued

Impacts of adoption of IFRS17 at the transition date (Jantiary 1,2022)

The restated batance sheet as at January 1, 2022, compared to:the balance sheet as at December. 31, 2021 as pubilshed
highlights the following.impacts of IFR§17 at transition date:

December 31,2021  January 1, 2022 Impact of the
{published) (restated) restatement
£ € £
ASSETS o |
Equipment 11,308 11,306 -
Loans and receivables. 51,000,000° 91,000,000 B
Financial investrents: 70,761,583 70,761,583 =
Deferred tax asset 27,214 27,214 -
Reinsurer's share of technical provisions- 44,032, 011 - (44,032,011)
Reinsurance contract assets - 43,233,644 43,233,644
Insurance arid other receivables 1_.5_,01__9,_8_4_3- 15,019,843 -
Cash-and cash equivalents 87,915,330 87,915 ._33'0 -
TOTAL ASSETS 308,767,287 307,968,920 (798,367)
EQUITY
Capital and reserves attributable to shareholders
‘Share capital 5,900,000 5,900,000 -
Other resernves 8228 - 8,226 o -
‘Retairied earnirigs 51,233,323 96,182,889 44,959,576
TOTAL EQUITY 57.141,549 1021 0'1__,1-25 44,959 576
‘LIABILITIES _ L
Technical provisions 176,658,442 _ - {175,658:412)
Insurance:contract llabmtles - 105,691,467 105,691,467
‘Deferred tax liabilities upon transition - 24,209,002 24,209, 002
[hgurance-and other payébles: 54,263,306 54,263,306
Currerit tax fabilities 21,704,020 21,704,020 -
TOTAL LIABILITIES. 251,625,738 205,867,735 (45,757,943}
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 308,767,287 307,968,920 {798,367)

Qverall Profitability IFRS47 vs. IFRS4 — Comparison as of FY2022

Overall profitability is likeély to be-very similarunder. the current and previous IFRS4 approach. However, the timing would
differ under the two- approaches

As of FY2021, more rapid recognition of past profits has been recognized unider IFR$17, due to the nature of the RTI Life's
business, further explained below. Therefore, the positive: impact on equity has been reparted as-a transition impact.
‘Consequently, the level of CSM representing the Expected Future Profits, of .group-of contracts: has been.reduced. By 45
million eurgs (“Transmon |mpact") which.was one-of the:main reasens of decllnlng the profit as of E¥2022, by - rilfion etirés
compared o previous IFRS4. approach.

Eventhoiighthe recognition of prof' it is “faster” under IFRS17 approach, dueto the: pro’r‘ le:of the: coverage units corresponding
‘the evolution of the outstanding finance capital (sum -at-risk), thé production. ‘of new businesses only parhally offset the total
variance of prof‘ts between IFRS17 and:IFRS4 in 2022:
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‘2.2 Main .t_FRS-requ_ir.er_n_ents_._adopted'on_-_danu'ary 1, 2023 - continued

Main changes resulting from the adoption of IFRS 17

IFR8 17 estabilishies the principles for the reccgmtmn meastrémerit, presentation and disclosure of insurance-contracts:and
supersedes[FRS.4 - Inslrance Confracts. It aims.at beirigamore economic and better reflecting the underlylng pret‘ tability of
the business, while increasing comparability-across the industry.

‘As the application of IFRS17 is retrospectwe te January-1,.2022, RCI Lifé considéred that obtalnlng all the histarical data
reqmred for the estimation of contracts. i the portfolio at‘the: transition date was not pussible using the Full Retrospectwe-’.
Approach (FRA™. without incurring excessive costs and efforts, Therefore, the:Modified Retraspective Approach (‘MRA")
was. retained.and- applied tothe enfire scope tancerned: to actount for the |mpact of the: transition on the. accounts as of
January-1, 2022.

‘The impact of the transition generatesa: pesmve neteffect on shareholders' equity of 45 mllhen «euros in'the opening balance
sheet as-of January. 1, 2022,

Thiis positive effecton equity comes from amaere: rapid recagnition of profits: under IFRS17 linked to the: profi le offhe. coverage
units which réflect, over-the duratioh of the insurance contracts, the decrease in the:sums under risk, corresponding to the
evolution of the: outstandlng findnee amounts. Wnder IFRS4, insurance premiums are dcquiréd accerdtng toa linear profile.

As required by IFRS17, the- comparatwe financial staternents have been restated to consider the application-of the standard
as.of Janugry 1, 2022. IFRS17 technical provisions as of 31/12/2022 were defined by the application of the general model
tothe portfoha based on:the épéning balariceé shaet resulting frort the. fransition on-01/01/2022.

Furthermiore, in the statement of profit oi: loss, insurance revenue will not reflect the premiums.: ungenwritten’ during the year
but the:premiums earned during the period, riet of any investrment component; cerrespondmg to the rélease of the fulf; Iment
cash fiows (i.e. the expected cash flows: of the: perled plus the related. reledse of risk adjustment fof non-financial risk) and
the CSM.

2.3 Other Standards, mterpretatlons and amendments to published standards as endorsed by the
European Union effective in the current year

The overall accounting policies are consistent with those of the previous financial year:

Several othernew standards, amendments and interpretations to éxisting standards; apply for the first time in 2023; whose
adoption to the requirements of 1FRSs. as -adopted by the EL did hot:resultin substantial -changes-to. the Companys
accountmg pohcues and did not lmpact the financial statements,

. Amendments to !AS 1 Presentatton of Flnanmal Statements and !FRS F’ractlce Statement 2: Disclosure of

Previousty, an éntity was requlred to disclose in its financial statements: its significant accounting policigs, with the
‘amendments an entity will néw be fequired to disclose its' matenal accountmg pD|[CIES

'Paragraphe are added to explajn.how an ent|ty identifies material accounting policies: along with-added-examples:to- axplain
“wheh -acceunting pnttcy information is-likely to become ‘matetial, focusing on concepts such' as that accounting policy.
inforiation. becomes material because of its paturé, even if the rélated armounts are immatenal

Additionally, IFRS Practice Statement 2 has been-amended through added guidance and examples to-explain and- ilustrate
the appllcatuon of the:‘foui-step. matenallty process' fo. accountlng pohcy information in. aim.of supporfing the amendments to
1481,

. Amendmenis ta LAS 8.Accounting policies, Changes in Aecounting: Estimates. ang! Errors: Defi nition of Acceuntlng
Esfimates {issued oni 12 February 2021) {effective on 1 January 2023)

The amendments o IAS 8 focus entlrety oy accounting estimates: with: the: clefenlt:on of a change ln accounting-estimates’
‘being. replaced with a definition of accounting. estimates.. Accountlng astimates. are now defined as.*monetary amounts in.
financiat statements that are subjéct tomeasirement uncertamty
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2.3 Other Standards, interpretations and amefndments to published standards as endorsed by the
‘European Union effective in the current year - continued

-Accounting-estimates arise when accountmg pollmes reqwre iterns in: financial statements to be measured ina way that
involves measurement uncertainty. The amendments clarify-that a change in accolnting estimate that results from new
information or new developments is not the. correction of an ertor and that. the effects -of a changé in an-input-or a’
‘measurément msthod Usied to-defive an actounting estimate are changes in dccounting estimates it they do not result from:
AHe& correction of prior period errars.

The effect of the change relating to the-cufrent period is recognised as income or expense in- the current period. The effect,
-if-any, onfuture: penods i recogniséd ag:income or expense in those future periods:.

. Amendments .to IAS 12 Income Taxes: Deferred Tax related to Assets .and-Liabilities arising from & Single:
Transaction (issued on 7-May 2021) (effectwe on-1 January 2023)

The -amendments narrow: the scope of the recognition exemptlon in paragraph 15 of IAS 24-(récognition exerhption) so that:
itno Icnger applies:to transactions that, of initial recognition, give tise 10-equal taxable arid deductible temporary differences.

“The Gompany had not earlyr adopted: these revisions io.the requwements of IFRSs as adopted by the EU-and the Cofmpany's.
‘Directors are-of the opinion that, there. are no requiréments that will have a possibie s:gmf icait impact on-the Campariy's.
financial statements in the: period Gfinitial appllcailon

The-application of these amendments did hot have a material effect on the.Company's financial statemerits.

Standards, interpretations and amendments to published standards as adopted by the EU. in-issue but not yet
-effective for financial periods beginning on.1 January 2023;

‘Certain new standards, amendments and interpretations to. existing. standards have been published by the:date of
-authorsation for issue.of these financial statements bul not yet effective for ﬁnanclal penods beginning on 1 January 2023,

a Amendments.{6.JAS 12 I_ncorne"l"'éx_es: interational tax reform: Pillar. Two model (published. on. 23 May 2023)
(effective.on 1. January 2024)

The ameridmants introduce a mandatory temporary’ exeeption fin 1A812 from recognizing and-disclosing deferred tax assets
and deferred tax liabilities. arising from the implementation of the OECD Pillar Two model rutes. They also inttoduce same
disclosure requirements for affected enhues The afmendments have not:yet-been endorsed by the-European Uniofi.

When thé tax legislation is effective, the current tax expense’ (mcome) refated, to Pillar Two. income taxes will ‘have to be
disclosed.separately. in the meantime,.in penods in'which Pillar Two legislation i is enatted or substamively enactéd, but not
yet i effect, flie IAS12 amendments require: -disclosing knowri-or reasonably éstintable: information that helps Users. of the
finanicial - statemerits understand the estity’s- exposiire to Pillar Two iricome taxes arising from that legistation. These
distlosures are required for annual reporting perigds beginning.on or after 1 January 2023

Stanidards, interpretations-and amendments issued by. the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) but
not yet adopfed by the European Union:

. Améndrménts to IAS 1 Presentation of Finaricial Statements: Classification of Liabilifies as Cufrent or Non-current.
(issued-on 23 January 2020), Classification: of Liabilities &s Current. or Nofi-current - Deferral of Effective; Date
(issued-on 15 July 2020) and Nen-Current Liabilities.with Coveniants. (issued on'31- October 2020) — effective-on-1
January:2024.

. Ameridments 1o 1AS7 - Statement of Cash flows and IFRS7 — Financial instruments: Disclosures (issued on 25

May. 2023) — effective on 1.January 2024.

Thé Directors are assessing the: impact that fhe adoption of these Financial Reporting Standards will have in the fi nancial
statements.of the Company .in the penod of iriitial apphcatmn

is:
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2.4 Significant'accounting judgements, estimates :and assumptions

The: preparatlon of the Company's financial statemerits. réquires management to make judgements; .estimates. and
assumptions.that affect the repoited amounis of revenues; expenses, assets and liabilities and the disclosure of contingent
‘liabilitigs, -at the. reportmg date. However, meer‘ralnty about these assumptions and estimates couid resuit.in outcomes that
could. requu‘e a-materizl adjusrment fothe carrying amount of the asset orliabilify affected in the future.

Judgements

from:those involving estimations and:assumptions, which have a significant effect.on the-amounts recognised-in the financial
statements.

In-the process of applying the Company’s-accounting policiés, managementhas notthiade any sigrificant judgments, -apart

Estimates and assumptions.

The key assumptions-concerning; the futuré and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporfing date, that have
a-significant. risk of ‘causing & material adjustment tothe..carrying émounts of assets and liabilities within the next fi nancial
year are discussed below.,.

All:assumiptions répreséenting inplits-of the projéction models underlylng thie. Fulfillment of.cash-flows ('FC F") are based on
Statistics performed on portfolio'data and are siibject of annual inferrial review as well s the external-audit review. RCI Life
used these set of assumptions, split'per nan-ecanemic and sconomic, as follows:

Mon-economic

1. Mortality
a. For the year end2023 calculation of “FCF”, the mortality assumptions have:been derived based on the
experience -observéd between Jenuary—2020 and June-2023 with fuil reflechon of the Cov;d~19 loss
_experience and this represents approximately 30m of analyzed pericd.
b. Observed rnortallty rates have been extracted by couniry:and by age from 3,5 years history data ] order o
reflect fatést trends. Expenence rates were then smoothed according to-Whittaker-Henderson method to reach
Best Estiniates: of imortality rates.

2. Claim. Acceptance rates

8. Adceptance ratés calculation is based on.all data histery including-a breakdown. of "Drop claims” status: Best
Estimate has been-taken as the averagé. of yearly acceptance rates in-2020 — 2023 peiiod ‘without any:
adjustments for all countnes except. France. _

b. Incase of France and due lo-the chiange in operational process for French Death portfolio-starting in the end
of 2021, the continuous increase of the Dieath Acceptance:rate has been.observed, reachirig the tevel more
than:75% observedin 2023,

c. In 'her 'porlf' 'o_s‘ stabilization of claim acceptance rates. has beenobserved compared tg the: premous year,.
i the range: of 80:—-85% for. Death coverage.

3. Lapse rates
a. Lapsé rates are.defi ned per country, contract duration.and: development year {in which year-of the contract the-
lapse has occlired):
b. Lapse rates are derived based on;.
i. the portfollo h|s{ory to catch the distribution structure of the lapse rate per financing duration and
~ contract development year
ii. an-adjustment coefficient so that the global poitfolic lapse rate targets the fmore recent lapse rate
observed orvthe portfdlio.
&. -Compared ta the previous year, the movement of lapse rates.have been observed within the interval <=1 %.__
1% p.a.. Slight. worseé trénd was. hlghlrghted in Franee and Germany. whergas better development was
-estimated in Italian and Spanish porifolio.
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2.4 Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions - continued
Estimates and assumptions - continued
Non-Economi¢

4. General Expenses-
a. Gerieral expenses-assumptions have been based on the budget forecast-of. general expenses. of RCI Life, split
by nature,
b.  Onthis volume of general expenses, settlng the expense assumptions: consists ifr
i; Identif cation of fi xed. expehse’s part by defining the fixed expenses which remain if the company is
" under arun-off mode.
ii. Splitgeneral expenses by company & InsurancelRetnsurance actnmy
jii, Split each- nature. of expense by destination {Acquisition, Administration, Claim maragerment,
Financial):
iv. Split expenses by destination by couritry.
v. ‘Split expenses by producticoverage.
vi. Calculate unit cost from ﬂoatlngfvanabte expenses according to portfalio data.
¢ All'expenses are then modelied as unit-costs, per policy and‘specific couritry.

Economic

i;iiScount:_rates.'_

The application guidarice in IFRS 17.B80:B85 outlines two rain methods of how to set discount rates under IFRS17: Top-
Down and Bottom-Wp approach:

Diieto the inability to finda reéplicating investrrient: partfolio.that matches the currency, liquidity and duratlon characteristics
ofthe. company s fiability portfolic. make. the application of the' “Tap-down’ approach challenging to attain in. practlce

Therefore, thecompany has.opted for the -‘Bqttbm-up'_ approach:in ._deri_\.f'ing:i_hg discount rate-fo-be applied in terms of IFRS
17 para. 36. The progess ¢an be splitinto two key derivation steps namely::(a) Risk-free.rate-and (b).Liquidity premium.

(a) Risk-free Rate
The risk-frée rate ("RFR") of return:is: the interest rate an investor carr expect to.earn on'an investment that carries zero risk.

i. The Company's approach is to ulilize'the EIOPA.RFRs. The'key reasons for thiis are:

«  Being derived using 7 designated reférence portfolio-of assets for which there exists.observable active markef
prices.

s ‘An adjustment of.a risk-free vield curve, through the volatlllty adjustment, for the differences in fiming-and
uncertaiity: Charactesistics of its insurance tontract liabititiss is:consistent with the JFRS17 bottomi-up approach..

.+ Beirig -a readily observable level 2 market input, this approach: lends itself relatively -easier to aadit and be
-dgemed acceptable by auditors,

i. EIOPA RFRs-afe readily available for a-range of currericies; including EUR, ‘the currency used by the Company.

i, The EIOPA RFRs are released on-a regular basis, on the third working day of each-miorith, appropriately fitting with
the Company's reporting hmehnes

v, Itwill provide consistency between Sii.and IFRS17,
v, EIOPA RFRs are to bE"'Widé_l}{.uS'éd by other similar insurers in the market,

vi. There'is little. benefitin -deriving another set-of very similar alternative RFRs, the derivation of which would increase:
pressures-on meeting. reporting timelines.
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2.4 Siguificant accounting judgements, estimates and assiimptions - continued

Estimates:and assumptions - continued

(b) Liguidity premium

- The Institute- and Faculty of Actiaries {IFOA) IFRS 17 working party definies the liquidity risk premium (LP) as;

Liquidity. risk-premiumn = yield {o‘mattiity on reference portfolio— risk free rate — credit risk premiim

The IFRS17 Standard does not prescribe a. particutar method to calculate:the: credit rigk. prémiurn, The. [FoA paper however

suggests the followmg methods o consider for the calculation of the-cradit rik: premium:

»  Expectedloss given. default based on historical data

e  Corporate: bond spread.
»  Credit:Default Swap (CDS). spreads

The Gompany’s approachis o utilize the Moody's Liquidity Premia solution®, The key teasans forthis are:

The methodalogy is reflective of the company's own asset portfolio, Given that RCI Life's investments follow an assét-
liability. matching approaoh this satisfies the {FRS17 requirement of adopting discount rates-which reflect the, Ilqmdlty
-characteristics of insurarice contracts.

it.. Thefact that MA provides its Liquidity Premia solution-on.a quarterly basis is.considered-as appropriate for. the Company;

being aligned with the freqiency at which the ‘compainy monitors ils investment holdlng weightings {dunng Solvency I
‘cafculation runs).

* Moody's Analytics (MA). adopt a weighted averagé cost.of cepital.approach to estimating credit.risk premia, may-be used
as an input-into deriving the: qut.ud:ty Premia;

MA's risk: premia may be provided for each relevant.currency (moludmg EUR)on a quarterly basis as.an. off-the-shelf salution
package Within this solution; Liquidity Premias’ are-caltulated for & numbeér of bonds coveéring an- appropraate range of
durations and-credit ratings. The: relevant weightings by duration.and credit: ratmg may be adjusted to reflect the Company 5
own investment holdings within its asset partfalio,

In. addlllon tho Contractual Service Margin:("CSM™);

»

>

b

pragressively carried forward to incomie statément over the estimated life of the:i msuran o}

‘batanceto. coverdge- units, which-are based on: the quanmy of beriéfits provided. inder’t

represents. the part of the profts made-on the insurance conifacts ‘taken -out, vihich will be deferred .and
orltracts

by allocating the
€ contracts;-and the

recagnittion of the CSM in profit or Joss under the genérdl measurement model

contracts® expec d’:duraﬂon

The Contract boundary forinsurance contraict is defitied as follows:

The Company ts-responsible for: appraving.a new insurarice produet, change.of a product or creation/modification
of any insurarice tariff, linked to the financing of cars (credit, leasing) by the Graup. No stand-alorig insurance
program is allowad to be lauiiched' by the Company outside the client-base: of the Group,

Therefore: _ .
1. Contract boundary for Premiuin refated cash-flows:

»  Premium is.collected overthe penod of the ﬁnanoang duration on a monthly basis-or as:a single:
premium {up-front). at inceplion date of the Insurance ‘contact, which is. equal to the.
commencement-date of the ﬁnancmg oontraotfrespeotwe dellvery of the car to the policyhalder.

= Therefcre ‘the fight of receiving premium fs fixed® by the end of the insurance contraét and no-
premium is allowed o be collected after the termination dafe:

= Acquisition. commissions are due right after the .collgction: of premiunt and therefore; no
‘agquisition costs.can b inclrad. before the stait of the insurance contract,

i8
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2.4 Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions - continued
Estimates and assumptions - continued

ii. Contract boundary for Incurred claims related cash-flows:
= According to the insurance policy, the maximum eligibility date for the occurrence of any claim is
the date of the termination of the insurance contract, i.e. this is the date until when the entity has
a substantive obligation to provide the insurance contract services.

Valuation of insurance contract liabilities
Life Insurance and reinsurance contracts cover a fixed term in line with the underlying credit or lease period insured.

Life insurance and reinsurance contract liabilities are recognized accounted under a forward-looking Economical Value
approach in IFRS17 vs. historical valuation in IFRS4 valid till the end of 2022.

IFRS 17 requires insurance contracts to be measured using current estimates of future cash flows that are updated at the
end of each reporting period. The "book value balance sheet" has been replaced by an "economic balance sheet".

The main principle is that an insurance contract is measured using a current estimate of all expected cash flows within the
contract boundary that will arise as the contract is fulfilled. The General Measurement Model (GMM), also known as Building
Block Approach (BBA) is the general accounting approach for the measurement of insurance contracts under IFRS 17, which
has been implemented for whole portfolio of RCI Life.

Under the General Measurement Model (GMM), the liability projection involves a combination of several key components,
which collectively build up the liability for insurance contracts. These components include present value of expected future
cash flows, Risk Adjustment (RA) and Contractual Service Margin (CSM). The liability is discounted for the time value of
money, and it must reflect the liquidity characteristics of the insurance contracts. In addition, it has to be consistent with
market prices and exclude those factors in market prices which do not affect the insurance cashflows (e.g. credit risk).

At inception date of the contract

Future Cash she Mo e corinct
Outflows

Future Cash

Inflows

C5M
Cortron: tuol Sesvee

Mg
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2:5 Summary of material accounting policies
{a) Product classification

Insurance contracts and réinsurance contracts are those contracts.in which-the Company (the “insurer’) has actépted
significant insurance risk from another party (the * “palicyholders) by. agreeing to.compensate the palicyholders i a-specified
uncertair future event (the “insured event") adversely affects the policyhelders. As a general guideling; the Company defines
significant insurarice risk 4s the possibility of having to ccmpensaie the pelicyholder if a specified.uncertain future‘event (the.
“insured-event®} adversely affects the policyholder.

The Company issues contracts’ that transfer significant insurance risk- and has'defined all its. contracts .as insurance/
reinsuratice contracts: Life business ‘consists of long-termpolicies that cover the livés of a group of customers for-the.year
under cover:

Insuranée contract liabilities: Direct & Reinsuranceé contracts held

Al insurance contract Habilities. ("Techrical provisions”) should be-calcuiated and reperted by Unit of Account (“UoA™),
which must be split by:

> type of risk ("LoB"),.

» annual generation of contracts,

»- graup of profitability (“Prof itable”, “No signific cant possibility of becoming cnerous“ “Orerous”).

Components of Insurance Contract liabilities. for Liability for Remaining Coverage (“LRC"), impiémenied at RC| Life
cansists of 3-campotients ar "building blocks™ as shown helow:

1). Best Estimate Liability (‘BEL") ]_ . Fulfilliient Cash-Flows.
2) Risk Adjustment. ('RA"
3) ‘Contractizal Service Margin, (“CSM")

LRC
This cofresponds ta: Unearnéd Premium Reserve or UPR-and relates 1o fulure service allocated to-a. group- ‘of insurance
contracts, plus the GSM, where relevant,

Fulfiliment Cash-flows

Unbiased.-and probabﬂlty—wmghted estimate (i.e. ‘expacted value).of the present value. of the future cash outfliows minus the-
present: value of the fulure cash'inflows that will-aride as.the entity fulfls insurance contracts |nclud|ng a risk adjustment for
nen-financial risk.

Best Estimate Liability {"BEL")

Bash Flows. Re!ated 1o Direct” busingss. and Remsurance business. {Reinsurance Contrdcts Held) are. measured
and presented separately under IFRS 17.

BEL represents an experience-based projection of the diseounted value of expected future benefits payable
deducted from the discounted value-of the expected value of theoretical future premiums.

Thie discoutell-value of the expected benefits payable and the discournted value of the expectéd theoretical
premiums are based oncertainvaluation assumptrons used, such as:interest rates, rnor:allty rates, jncidence rales,
expenses, and lapse.rates, without any risk margin (the margin is incorporated:in. the RA).

Cashi Flows Inctudediin Fulfilment Gash Flows.

{#*) Premiums

(4):Claims- (claim payablés, futire claims)

{-) Insurance Acduisition Cests ("Acd. Commissions”)

{-). Claim Handiing Costs.

(-) Poticy Administration and Maintenarice Costs - -Directly Attributable

(+) Profit Skiare from. Technigal results:of reinsurarice (PP business — Réinsurance outwards)
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2.5 Suimmary of material accounting policies - centinued

{a) Product classification — continued

‘Cash Flows Not Included in Fuifilment Cash Flows

x Iivestment income:
x Cash Fiows related-to. Futare Insurance: Contracts

X lnco___rne Tax Payments and’ Receipts

Discounting:

The discount rates are-defined using the "bottom-up" method ta which an iliquidity premium is added ari-top of the risk:free:
rate curve defined by EIGPA. llliquidity premium has béen derived on-quarterly review basis by top ~down™approach, from-
Market price: curve, by-removing the "expected” default probability & credit risk premia.

Risk Adjustiment (“RA)

RA is.defined as & compensation; the:entity requirés-for bearing the uncertainty abaut the  amount and timing of the cash
flows that-arises from non-finaficial risk.as the ertity fulfils insurante contracts.

RA is caloulated based on the Quantile technique at-RCI Life: Valug-at-Risk’ method when the observed distribution ¢f the-
frequiency. for clainis represents the main risk factor of the insurarice. portfolio.

Accordmg to the rtsk appetlte ruies and the benchmark of companies with the similar product. portfollo the RAis cahbraied-

Cbntmctuai'semfr;e-Maggm'- {‘csM).

CSM reptesents the Unearned Profit for a. Group ofinsurance Contracts.

C5M equals to the Present Value of Future Profits of the Group.of Insurance: Contracts at inception, when-profit is amortized:
over the life of the contracts.

Amortization of -G_S"M_is:_-'_done based on the risk p_ro_ﬁl'e'of'*ihe_‘_annual'_ cohonts of confracts 'byconsidgrin‘g the profile of the

Sumn-at-Risk, Risk adjustmerit is -also recognized according:to the same profile. Refer to the section.on Estimates and.

Assumgptions;

.Componenis of Insurance Contract Hiabilities for Liability for ‘Incurred Claims. (“LIC™), implemented at RCI Life are
described belc:w

1) Best Estimate Liability 1 fulfiliment Gash-Flows
2) Risk Adjustment | Fuffiment Cash-Flows

corresponds to Unpaid Loss and comprises the-fulfiliment. cash flows related to past service allocated to a portfolio of
insutance contracts.
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2.5 Summary of material accounting policies - continued
{a) Product classification — continued
Fulfilment Cashi Flows

-Cash flows are represented by claims incurred, but'nat yet paid, derived from claims paid triangles per cohbr, -coufitry; and
. GUIVera'g_:B'S. .

“Main inputs required are: o
» Claims payments from Datawarehouse (‘DWH")
> Qutof system Payments provided by thié Opérational team.
¥ LG projection.templates split per. Anriual cohoits of group.of contiacts,

Outputs expected are:

> After the calculation process (generating cash-flow) is complete. itis expected to have all required.input filés 16 be
upload the accounting software Risk Integrity. _ o o _

%  Onice the run of the project is. compléted; all technical accounts linked to the incurred claims {currerit and past
services) are part of the Téchnical Balance sheét and P&L as Insurance Sefvice Resilts.

Biscounting,

The discount rates "are:"d_-":ﬁnad_uﬂsi_rig the "bottom-up” migthod 16 which an iliquidity premium'is added on top of the risk-free
rate curve defined by EIQPA. lliquidity pramium has been derived quarterly review by “top-down” approach; from Market

frice curve for removing thie “expected” defauit probability & credit risk premia.

‘Risk Adjusiment ['RA?)

RA s definéd as & compensation; the entity requires for bearing the uncertainty about the amount:and timing: of the cash
flows that-arises from non-financial fisk as the sentity fulfils insuranée cantraets.

RA is calcutated based on.the Mack Method of Reserving, using the calibration of lognormal distribttion at 80%-quantila,
applied on future cashfiows of claims.

{a.i)’ Recognition and measurement of insurance and reinsurance contracts
The company -re‘c_c_a__g_n'is_e_s groups of insutrance contracts issued from the earliest of thefollowing dates:

s The beginning of the coverage period of the-group of contracts: _ _

» The date wheh the fitst payment fiom a policyholder becomes-due (in the dbsence of a contractual due date, this
is-degmed o be when thé first paymientis received) '

s  Thedate'when the group of coniracts becomies onerous

The company recognises: anly contracts issued within a one-year period meeting the. recognition criteria but the reporiing
date {"annual cohorts™)..

{a.ii) Presentation of insurance arid reinsurance contracts

The company has:presented separately in the:statement of financial position the carrying amount of dggregated portfolios:
of insurance-contracts that are assets and those that are liabilities, and-the gportfolios of reinsurance €ontracts held that are
-assets and those that:are liabilities.

“The company shows separately the amounts recognised in the statement of profit.or [oss arid other comprehernsiva income
.into:aninsurance service résult sub-total that comprisés. insurance revenue-and insurance service'expenses and, separately
from the-insurance service result, the 'nét.insurance finarice incomie. or-expenses’ sub-total. The company has included the:
netinsurance finance income or.expenses linein anothersubtotal: net insurance and investment result, which also includes:
the income from all the: assets backing the company's insurance liabilities.
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2.5 Summary of material accounting policies - continued:
Receivables ahd 'payabiéjs_'rEIajted--to insurance and reinsurance acceptance contracts
Receivables and payables ate recognised wheri due. These itiude amadints. due to and from intermediaries.

f there is. abjective. evidence that an-insurance receivable is-impaired, the Company reduces the carrying amidunt of the
insurance receivable accordingly and recognizes that impairment loss in the Income Statement. The. Company gathers the
‘objective eviderice that an-insurance. receivable i impaired using the samg process adopted for financiat assets held at
-amortised.cost. B '

The impairment loss'is calculated fallowing the same method used forfinancial assets.
{b) intangible assets-

Intangible assets acquired separately are- measured on initial recognition at cost. Following inltiat recognition; intangible
-asgets aré carried at cost |55 any accumulated amoitisation and any accumulated impairment losses, The: useful life of
intangible assets are assgssed to be finite.

Intangible assets.with finité lives are amortiséd over the' useful économic life and assessed for impairment whengver there
fs an indication. that the: intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation year-and the amortisation method for an
intarigible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at each financial year end. Changes in the expected useful life
‘or the expected pattern of consutnptiori of fiiture economic benéfits embodied in the assetis accounted for by changing the
amortisation year o method, as appropriate, and are‘treated @s changes in accounting astimates. The amoriisation expense
of intangible-assets with finite lives Is recognised n:the Inceme Statement in the- expense category consistent with the
intanigible asset, '

Gains orlosses arising from derecognition of i_ah_in_tan‘g'ibl_é' asset are measured as-the difference between the net disposal
prcceéd's-and'the_.carr_ying_-amoum. afthe-assel and-are recegnised.in the Incom_q.S__latem_gnt-whg_n.t_he_.;as_;-;ét-ié derecogriised.

{¢) Taxes
Currentincomeiax

Gurrent income tax assets and liabilities for the.clrrent year are measured at-the amounit-expected to. he recovered from or
paid to- thie taxation authorities, The. tak rates-and tax laws used to compute. the amount are those that-are enacted or
siibstantively enacted by the reporfing date.

Current income fax relating fo items recognised directly.in equity is recognised jin-eguity-and not in-the ncame Statement.
Deferred income fax

Deferted income tax is provided using the liability’ method: on fermporary \dif"__fere_nfcas_;-_.ai.-._.th_e reporting: date between fhe tax:

bases of assets.and liabjlities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.
Deferred income tax liabiliies are recognised forall taxable temporary differences.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for alt deductible ternporary differences, .carry forward of unused tax credits and
unused tax losses, to the exterit that itis-probable that taxable profit will be available againstwhich the deductible temporary
differénces, and fhe carry forward of unused tax erédits dnd unused tax losses can be utilised except:

+ When the-deferred income-tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the iiitial recogpition of
an asset or liability in.a transaction that is not'a ‘business combination arid, at the Gme-of the transaction, affects neither
the accounting profit nor-taxabte profit or loss; and

» In respect of deductible temporary differences associated with. invesiments in subsidiaries, associates and in’ joint
ventures, deferred income tax assets.are- recognised ‘anly to-the extent that it is probable that the termporary differences
will reverse ifi the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be avallable against which the temparary: differences ¢an be.
utilissd,
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2:5 Summary of material accounting policies - continued
{c) Taxes - contintecd
Deferred.income fax - continued

The carrying amount of defeired income {ax-assets is reviewed at-each reporting date and reditced to the extent that it is no:
fongerprobable that' sufficierit taxable profitwill be available to-atlow ail or partofthe defeired indome tax asset to be utilised.
Unrecognised: deferred income tax assets are reassessed at each. reporting.date and are recognised to the extent that it has
become probab!e that futute taxable profit will allow the deferred tax asset to bie Tecovered..

Deferred income tax assels and. lzablllttes are measured at the tax rates that.are expected to apply-to'the year when:the
assetis:fealised of the liability is seftied, based on tax rates (and tax Jaws] that have been enacted or substantively enacted.
at the reporting date: Deferred income tax relating to items recognised directly' ifi equity is Tecoghised in equity and riot in
the Income: Statement. Deferred income fax assets and defefréd income.tax liabilities are offset, if a iegally enforceable right
exists to-sef off current tax assets: against current incame tax labilities and the deferred’income taxes relate to the same
taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

The Company has. applied a: temporary: mandatory rellef froin deferred tax aceauinting for the Impacts ofthe glabai minimum
top up tax required under Pillar | legislation, Shoutd the Company be in-scope, it will account for it as a.current-tax when it
is incurred,

{d) Financial assets
Initial recoghition and subsegifent measurement

The Company classifies: its financial assets into loans and receivables;and financial investments. The classification is
dependent on the. purpose for: whloh the mvestments are:acquired. The Company determines the cl assmcahon ofits fi nanmai;
assets.at initial recognmon

The Company evaluated its financial investments whether the:ability and intention fo sell tham - the near term:is. st
approptiate, All “regular way' * purchases and sales of firiancial assets dre recognised at the'trade date, that is; the date that
‘the Company comits 1o purchase or selithe asset. -Regular. way. purchases of salés are purchases of sales of financial
assets that require. delivery of assets within the time frame generally established: by regu[atlon o1 convention-in the market
place.

Finaricial assets.are recognised-initially at fair value plus directly attributable transaction costs. The Camipany's finahcial
assets include cash and short-term-deposits, frade-and other receivables, loans and other receivables.and guoted financial
instrufrients.

Loans anhd receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or. determinable payments that are not quoted in:an.
active markét. These investments are.initially recagnised at cast, being the fair value:of the consideration paid for the
acquisition of the nvastment, Ali trarisaiction costs directly attibutable to the acquiisision are also included in the cost of the:
investment, After initial. measurement, loans and receivables are measured at.amortised cost, using the effective interest
method. Gains-and losses-are. recognlsed in the Income Statement when the invesiments are defecognlsed orimpaired, as
‘well-as thréugh the: amortisation process.

.Financiaf lnvestiients

Firiancial investmients are non-derivative finaricial assets that arfe designated -as fair value through other comprehensive
-incame. These investmenits are initlally iecorded at fair value: After initial measurement; financial ihvestmerits.are: measured:
at-fair value, Fair value gains and losses are repoﬂed as a-separate component in- Other Comprehensive Incomie. uritil the.
mvestment is derecogmsed or-the investment is determined to be.impaired.. On. derecognition or impairment, the cumulatwe:-
fair-value gaing-and losses previously reportéd in equny arefransférred to the Income Statemenit.
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2,5 Summary .of material accousiting policies - contintied
-(8) Fairvalue of financial instruments

Thie fair value of financial instruments thai are: actively {raded in organised financial markets is-determined by reference to
~quoted market bid prices for-assets and offer prices:for- liakilities, at the close of business.on the reporting date, without any
-deduction for fransaction costs.

Thé fairvalue of fixed rate and overnight cleposns with creditinstituticns is thsir carrytng value. The carrylng valyeis the cost
-of the'depositand accrued interest.

If the fair vattie. cannot b& measured reliably, these financial instrumeénts. are measured. at-cost, being the fair value of the
‘consideration paid for the acquisition of the investment orthe amount réceived on issuing the financial tiability. All transaction
costs directly attributable to-the acquisition. are ‘alsoincluded in the cost.of the investment.

An analysis of faif values of findncial instrurents and further detafls as to how-they are measured are provided in Note 11.
{f) Impairment of financial assets

The:Compary dssesses at-each reporting date-whether a finantial assef or group-of financial assets.is impaired.

Assels carried at amortised cost

I there i objsctive-evidence that an imipairment loss on :assets carriet at amortised cast has been incurred, the amount of
‘the ifpairmerit joss is measured as the difference bétwien ihe assét’s: carrying amount and the. présert vallie: of estimated
future cash flows. {excluding future expected credit losses that:have not-been incurred). discounted at the fihancial asset's
original effective:interest rate. The. carrying amaount- of the asset is reduced and the loss is Tecorded in the Income Statement.

The Gompany first assésses whether objective evidence of impaifiment exists. :ndlwdually for financial -assets. that are
mdtwdually ssgmﬁcant and individually orco!lectwely forfinancial assets that are notindividually S|gn|i' icant. If itis determined
that no objective evidence of impairment exists for an individually assessed financial asset; whether s1gn|ﬁcant or not, the
assét is ificluded in a group of financial assets with similar credit risk characteristics ahd that group. of financial assets.is
ccilech\rely assessed for impairment.:Assets that are individually assessed for impairment and for which.an impairment loss;
is, or:continues to be, recognised are not ingluded in-a.collective assessment of impairment. The lmpairment assessment is
performed at each feporting date.

Ili; ina subsequent year, the. amount of the trnpalrment loss decreases and that decrease can be related objectively, to an
event oecurring after the- lmpalrrnen{ was recogmsed the prewously recognised impairment loss is reversed: Any subsequent
reversal of an impairmgntloss is recagmsed in-the Income Staterrient, o the extentthzt the. carrying valug of the asset does
riot exceed its amortised cost at the reversat date.

Financialinvestments

If financial investments are impaired, an-amount.comprising the: dlfference between dits gost (nét of any principal repayment
and amortlsatlon) and its current fair valie, less any impairment loss previously recognised in Other Comprehenswe Income;
is transferred from equity to the income Statement: Reversals. in:respect of equity instruments ¢lassified ds financial
investments are not recogmsed i the ncome Statement.

Reversals. of |mpalrment logses-an debt instruments classified at financial investments -are reversed through the Income.
Statemerit if the increase in‘the fair value of the. instruments can be. objectwely related ‘to an event occuiming after ‘the
impairmeént losses were recognised in the Income Statement.
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2.5 Summary of material accounting policies - continued
1{g) _.Berecggniiio_n -of finahcial agsets.

A financial asset {or; when applicable, a partofa. fnanczal_a_sset orpart of a-group. ofsm‘nlar i'nanc:lal assets) is derecagnised
wheny

+ The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired:
« The Company retains the tight to receive cash-flows from the asset but has assumed an obligation to- pay thém- in-full
without material delay to a third party undera pass-through’ 'arrangement
» The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset'and. either:
= hdstransferreéd substantially all thie risks and rewards of the asséet, of
s has neither transferred:nor retained substantially all the risks ‘and rewards of the asset but has transferred control of
‘the asset.

When the Company has fransferred its right to réceive cash flows from an asset.and has neither transferred:nor retained
substantially all'the risks and-rewards of the asset nar transferred control of the-asset, the assét is recognised fo the extent
of the Company's: cuntmumg involvement inthe: assst, Contlnumg involvement that: takes thie form of & guarantee over the
transferred asset js measured :at the lower of: the original -cartying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of
consideration that the Company could beTequiréd to repay.

When continuing, involvernentiakes: ihe form of a written and!or purchased option (lnclud:ng a cash:settled eption ar similar
provision) on the transferred asset, the: extent of the: Companys contmumg involvement is:the amount of the transferred
asset-that the- Company tay repurchase; except-that; in fhe case of a written put optlon (lncludlng a cash settied option.or
similar provision) on an asset measured at fairvalue, the extent of the- Company 5 continuing involvermnent is imited to the
lower of the fair value of the transferred asset and the:option exercise price:.

() Impairment of non-financial assets.

'The Company assesses af each reporhng date whether there Is.an indication that an asset. may be impaired. i any such
indication exists, orwhen annual |mpa|rment testlng ‘for an asset s requwed the Company estimates the asset's recoverable
amaunt, An asset's recoverable amountis the higher6f an assets or cashi-generating unit's fair value less casts fo'sell and
its value:in use. The recoverable amount is determined jor an individual asset; ufiless the assét dees not: genarate: ‘cash,
inflows that are Iargely mdependent of those from otherassels or groups of asseis:

For assets excludmg goodwill, an assessinient is made at each reporling déte as to whether theare. is any indication that:
_prewously recogrised impairment losses. may no longeremst or-may have-decreased. [f such indication exists, the- Company
makes an estimate of the récoverable ariotint. A’ previous |mpa|rmem loss is reversed- only. if there has-been a change:in.
the estimates used fo-determine the asset's récoverable smaunt since the Tast impairment lass'was recognised. If thatis the
case; the: catrying -amount of the asset is increased to.jts recoverab‘_le -amount. That increaséd amoéunt canriot excead the.
' amaount that wotild ‘have: been, rmmed net of depreciation, had no ampalrment foss been recognised for the
‘assetin-prior years: Such revérsal is reeognlsed inthe ncome Statement uriless the asset i 13 camed at revallied amount in
‘which case the reversal is treated-as a revaiuatioti increase.

(i} Equipmerit.

Equipment s stated at cost, excluding the costs of day-to: day ser\nclng less: accumulated dépreciation and accumulated
impairment losses.. Replacement costs. are capitalized when incurred. and: if it is* probable that:future economic benefits
associated with the-item will flow to the entity.and the cast of the item can be. measured reliably.

Depreciation is provided.on a straight-line basis over the useful lives of the following ciasses of assets:

Furniture, fixttire and-fittings; -8 yeas

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed and adjusted if-appropriate at each financial year end.
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2.5 Suimmary of matetial accounting policies - continued’
{i) Equipment - confinued

[mpairment reviews are performed when. there are indicators ihaf the carrying value may. not be recoverable. Impairment
laosses.are recognised in the Income: Statement as an expense.-An item of property and-gquipment is derecogriised Lipon
disposal orwhen no further fiture-ecoriomic benefits are expected fram its- use of disposal. Any ‘gaiy or Joss arising on
derecognifion: of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying. -arnourit of the
asset) is included in the Income: Siaiement in the year the asset is derecogrised.

(i) Insurance.and othier recejvables:

‘Insurance receivables-are. recognised when ‘due and measured on’initial fécognition at the-fair value of the considération
received or receivablé. Subseqguent to initial recoghition; insurance- feceivables. are measured at amortlsed cost, using the
effective interest method. The carmying value of insurance receivables is reviewed for impairment wheneéver events or
_:c:rcurnstances mdmate that. the carrying arnount may niat be recoverable, with fhe ;mpawment loss-recorded in the'income
statement.

insurance receivables.are derecogriised when the derecognition criteria for finaniclal assets, as described in Note:-2.5(g),
‘have been met, | |

{k) Cash and cash equivalents-

Cash and cash equivalents-comprise of tash at bank and in hand and short-term depasits with.a maturity of three months
or less in thé Statement of Financial Pesitian..

{1) Other financial liabilities and insurance payables

Other firancial llabmtles and insurance-payables are. recognlsed when due and measured on. initial. reoogmtlon at fhe fair
vatug:of the consideration recewed  Subsequent to initial recognition, 1hey are measured at amortised cost using the effective
|nt_er§est method.:

() Derecognition of financial liabilities and insurance payables

Financial liabilities and insurance payables are derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged, cancelled:
or expired.

When the existing fiability is replaced by anather from the same lender on substantlally drfferent 1erms, or-the. terms of an
existing liability are substantialy modified; such ari exchange or modificafion is keated .as a derecognitlon of the nrlglnat
fiabilify and the recegnition. of a new liability, and the differerice in the- respective carrying. amounts is recogmsed in the.
Income Statement.

(n) Equity movements

Ordinary shate capital

The Company hagissued ordlnary shares that are classified as eqwty Incremental external:costs thatare directly-aftributable-
to theissue of these shares are reoogmsed in equity, net of fax.

Dividends on ordinary shiare capital

Dividends on ordifary shares are vécognised as a liability and deducted from- equity when they are approved by the.
'Company s shareholders. Inferim dividends are.deducted from equity-when they-are- paid.
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2.5 Summary of material-accounting policies - continued
(o) Revenues from all insurance activities
1) Ihsdrance Revenué

For the General Measurement. Modet (“GMM”) the insurance revenue corresponds to the release of LRC depending
onthe: quantlty of provided s sefnvices, _and an allocation of insurance acqmsmon cash flows.

In -s_;ub‘_s{q‘nce, the amounis related to the provision of insurance contrac! services inciude:
s the expected claims, including expenses other than insurance: acqmsmon cash flows, but excluding:those
hot. contnbunng to the fulfiiment of insurance contracts (i.e. nen- aﬂnbutab!e expenses)
» the releasé of the risk: adjustment for nen-financial risk;
== the allocation of the Coniractual Service Margin ("CSM") to the: period.

The allbcation of insurance. acqwsstmn cash flows represents the portion of premlums that corresponds to the
recovering of those-cash flows fo each repomng penod in-a systematic way based on the passage of time, the same
amount being recognized 4s insurance service expenses, Thig mechanism enables to atdd back the part of the premiunt
‘corresponding to the: coverage of insurance acquisition cash flows. This means that insurance acquisition. cash flows:
are nat recognized.in 1he__slat_ement_of profitorloss when the-acquisition:cash-flows occurbut when the CSM is released.

{p) Expenses.from all insurance activities’
1) .i'nsi;rance service expenses

Insurance servicg expenses. ansrng fromgroups ef cantractsdssued by RCI Life aré recognized:in the statementiof profit
orloss-as they are incurred, Al insurance service expenses correspond to actual cash cutflows within the boundary of
cantracts:identified When projecting and calculating the present value of future cash flows.

2} Net expenses from reinsurance contracts held

In the statement of prof t or loss, nef expenses from reinsurance -contracts held are presented separate[y from the
Insurance service expenses. and included in a single’ aggregate correspondmg 1o.thé et between réinsurance: service
‘expenses and amounts recovered from the reinsurers.

3) Expenses from.other activities

The expenses. from other activities include claims: handimg ‘costs and administrative expenses are considered as
atfributable costs, fully allacated o the group of contracts at the RC! Life portfolio:

(4) Financial result
1) Investment returh

‘The investment raturn. recogrized through profit or logs consists af:

»  net investment income from investments other than from banking-acfivities, mcludlng the cost of investment:
acfivities not included in the fulfilinent cash flows (i.e.-thosé not performed for the benefit of pohcyholders), net.
of depreciation-expense on real estate investients: this tem ingludes interest recgived calculated using the
effective interest method-for-debt insiruments and dividends received.on-equity instrumerits;

+ realized gains and losses relating to investments at amortized cost and at fair value through other
comprehensiveincome (with recyc!mg), et of releases.of impalrment foilowmg sales;

‘net realized-gains-and-losses and change in fair-value of investments-at fairvalue through profit of loss; and
¢ changein. lmpalrment on investients.

2) Netfinance income-or expenses from insurance and reinsurance contracts hiefd

The net finance income or expenses from insuirarnce and reinsurance contracts Is presented inthé statement of profit of
loss with & split between insurance coniracts‘issted and reinsurance contracts held.

The €omipany also applies the GCI optian.
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2.5 Summary of material accounting policies. - continued
{r}:Events afterthe reporting date

The financial statements are.adjusted to reflect events that occurred between the reporting date and the date when the
financial statements are authorised for issue; provided they give evidence of condifions that existed at'the reporting date.
Events !hat are-indicative of conditions-that arose after the reporting: date are disclosed, but do‘not result in an adjustment
of the financial statements themselves;

{s) Functional arid preseritation currency

items included ini the finahdial statements are measured using the currency of the: pnmary egonomic environment in which
fhe enifity ‘operatés (the ‘furictional -currency’). These firancial statements.are presented in Euro, which is.the Company’s
functional and presentation currency.

3.Cash and cash equivalents

2023 2022

€ €

Cash atbank-and in hapd 83,518,612 83,791,741
Total cash and cash equivalents 83,518,612 63,791,741

Short-term deposits are-made for varying periods of bétweén one day and three months depending in.the immediate cash
réquirernents-of the Comparny. Deposits are subject to an average fixed interest. rate- of 3% (2022:0; 3%). Thecarrying
amounts:disclosed. ahove reasonably approximate fair value at the reporting date.

4. Financial Investments

o | 2023 2002
Financial Investments-at fair value € £
Debt-securities /98,064,260 87,075,681

(a) Financial investments mature as follows:
2023 2022
_ € €
Financial investments
Within-epe year 8,283,084 14,208,128
Betweén one and two years 73,320,392 44,605,283
Between two anid five years 16,460,784 28,262,270

98,06'4',260- 87,075,681

(b) Regonciliation

2023 2022

Notes. € €

Balance at beginning of year 87,075,681 70,761,583

Purchases 23,248,200 46,570,580
Maturities 5 (14,500,000} (24,550,000)
Amiortisation of premiums- 16 141,588 (553 984y

Faif vaiue gain recorded in Gther Camprehensive ihcome 13 2,308,341 (4,958,700)

Impairment (209,640) (198,798)

Batance atend of year 98,064,260 87,075,681
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4. Financial Investments - ¢ontinued

(c} Fair values hierarchy

The following table shows an apalysis of financial instruments récorded &t fair valtie by level of the fair value hierarchy:

2023
‘Level 1
€
Financial Investments:
Debt securities '98,064,260.

2022
Levei1
€

87,075,681

Included in. the Leve] 1 category are fi nancial assefs that are measured in whole by reference to pubhshed guotes in an:
active matket.-A financial instrument'is regarded as quoted in an active market: if quated prices are readily and regularly
available froman. exchange‘ deater, broker industry group, pru:tng service or regu!atory agency-and-those prices représent

actual and. regularly occurring market trangactions. on an arm's léngth basis.

5. Loans and receivables

2023 2022
£ €
Loans aiid receivables at amortised cost
Deposits held with financial institutions 83,500,000 77,000,000
‘The &bove deposits eam interest at an average fixed rate of 3% (2022: 1:6%).
l.oans and receivables:mature as follows: _ )
2023 2022
o € €
Loans and receivables
Within one year: 16,000,000 26,000,000
Between one and two years. 35,000,000 16,000,000
Between two.and five years 32,500,000 35,008,000

77,000,000
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6. Reinsurancée confract assets

‘{a) Reconciliation of the remaining coverage. and the incurred claims for reinsurance contracts

held

QOpening reinsurance contract assets
‘Openihg reinsifance: contract liabilities

Net balance:gs:at 1 January 2022

L5M recognlzed for services provided
Change in_risk adjustment for non-financial fisk
Torrisk:trafsferred

‘Expecled recoveries of incurred claims and
othierinsurance service expense.

ALLOCATION OF PREMIUMS FAID
‘Recoverigs-of incurred claims-and. otber
ifisurance sefvice expense

Ghanges: related to'past sevice: (changes
‘related 1o incurred claims component)

TOTAL AMOUNTS RECOVERED FROM
REINSURANCE

TOTAL NET EXPENSES FROM
REINSURANCE

‘The effect of and changes in time of time valie
of mignay and fifancial risk

TOTAL INSURANGE FINANCE INCOME OR
EXPENSE

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

‘TOTAL CHANGES IN THE STATEMENT OF
FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

Premitims paid nef of ceding commissions and-

othier: directly attributable expenses paid
Recoveries. fromi:reinsurance

TOTAL CASH FlL.OWS
‘NET CLOSING BALANCE.

‘Closing reinsurance contract assets
‘Chasing insurance confract liabilities

‘Net:balance as at 31 Décember 2022

Remaining'coverage  Losswrecovery  Incurred claims: “Total

{excluding 088~ component
recovery component) )

29,106,878 . 14,126,764 43233642

29,106,878 . 14,126,764 43233642,

(2,811,980) - - (2,811,980)

(468,509). - (468,509)

(3:239,075) - - (3,239,075)

(6,519,564) - - (6,519,564)

- 7,928,252 7,925,252

- (@151962)  (4151,962)

- - 3,773,290 3,773,290

(6,519,564) - 3,773,200 (2,746,274),

72,583 - 87.938 160,522

72,583 - 87,938 160,522

(841,425) - (373,436) (1,214,862}

{7,288,407) . 3,487,792 {3,300,615)

(6,162,108) - - (6,162,108)

- - (9,712,060) (8;712,060)

(6,162,108) - (9,172.080)  (15.874;187)

45,656,364 - 7,902,495 23,558,859

15,656,364 - 7.902:495 23558850

15,656,364 - 7,802,495 23,558,859
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RCI Life Liinited

Annual report-and financial statemients from 1 January. 2023 t6 31 December.2023

6. Reinsurance.contract-assets - continued

(a) ‘Reconciliation of the remaining coverage and the incurred claims for reinsurance contracts

held - continued

‘Opening feinsirdhee contract assets
Opening.reinsurance confract liabilities.
Net balarice as at1 January 2023

CSM recognized-fof services provided
Change‘in risk adjustment for non-financial
risk-fot risk transférred

Expected recoveriés. of inctired claims and-
otherinsurance service expense
ALLOCATION OF PREMIUMS PAID
Regcoveries ofincurred. claimis.and othier
Insurance; service. expense

Changes refated to past.senvice (changes
related to incurred: claims companent)
TOTAL AMOUNTS RECOVERED FROM
'REINSURANCE '

TOTAL NET EXPENSES FROM
REINSURANCE

The effect of and changss. in time of fime
vdlue of mionsy and financial risk

TFOTAL INSURANGE FINANCE INGOME OR
EXPENSE -

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME:

TOTAL CHANGES IN THE STATEMENT OF
FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

Premiums:pald net of geding.commisslons and’

offter directly attribufable expenses paid
Recoveries from reinsurance

TOTAL-CASH FLOWS.
Net balanee-as at 31 December 2023

Closinig reinstrance contract assets
Cloging.insurance contract: liabilities:

Nét balance as at 31 December 2023

Remaining coverage
{excluding Loss-
recovery component)

‘Lossrecovery
component

Incurred claims

Total

15,666,364

7,902,495

23,558,859

15,656,364

7,902,495

23,558,859

{2,280,708)

{2,280,708)

(327:481) - {327.481)
(_‘2.‘3_33,.292')' - - '(2;33:3'.5_2‘9_'2) _
(4,941,481). - - (4,941,481)

3,787.369:

3,787,369

- - (2,340;580) (2,340,580}

- ‘ | 1,-4.;16',789-' 1,44.6;7B§'
(4,941,481) - 1446789 (3,494;892)
56,450 - 49,765 108,185,

56,450:

49.?-765

106,185

303,746

259,445

563,191

(4581,314)

1,756,999

(2,825,318)

3570501}, ) - 3B89.501)
- - 16,254,354} (6:254,354).
'(_3_-',599'.409.] - ._{_6,254,?;54_} -_'(9_,}324_.:'854}
7,504,548° . 3404141 10,908,689
7,604,548 - 3,404,141 10,908,689
7,504,548 - 3404341 10,908,689




RCl:Life Limited

Annual report and financial statements from 1 January 2023 to 31 December 2023

6. Reinsurance ¢ontract assets — continued.

(b} Reconciliation of the measurement components of réinsurance contract balances - continued

SOpening reinsurance contract assets
‘Opéning réinsiirance. contract liabilitigs

‘Net balance as.at 1 January 2022

CSM recogmsed for'servicas receivad

Changsin the fisk: adjustment for non-fi nanclal Tigk for the. rlsk-

-xpired
‘Experience’ adjustments not. reiated 1o fature service-

CHANGES THAT RELATE TO CURRENT SERVICES
;Changes in-estimates that gdjust the: CSM

Ehanges in estimales that adjust récoveries ¢f losses on
onerous: ur;de_ri_ym_g contracts

CHANGES THAT RELATE TO FUTURE SERVIGES

Ghanges in fulfiment cash fiows — adjustment to the LIC

‘Experience. adjustmerits in.claims and. other Insurance service

expenses in LIG-

CHANGES THAT RELATE TO PAST SERVICES

TOTAL NET EXPENSES FROM REINSURANCE
The: eﬂect of-and changes [} tlme oftime valug of money and.

financial risk

TOTAL INSLURANCE FINANCE INCOME OR'EXPENSE
-OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME-

TOTAL CHANGES: IN THE STATEMENT OF FINANC!AL
:PERFORMANCGE

Premiums. paid net:of ceding commissions and other directly
_attnbutable gxpenses paid

Recoveries frcm reinsurance

TOTAL CASH FLOWS

NET GLOSING BALANCE:

‘Clasing réinsurance tontract asgets.

Ciasmg reinsurance contract liabifities:

Net balance as-at 31 December 2022

_Estimates of . Risk. CSM Total
Piésent value adjustment
of Future Cash ‘for non--
Flows financial risk
40,108,701 3,027,178 99,763 43,233,642
40,106,701 3,027478. 99,763 43,233,642
- - (2811,980)  (2,811,980)
- 97,066 - 97,066
4,120,601 - 4120,601
1,102;507 {176,801).  (2289,700)  (1,333,995)
(3/624,087) 170,864 3453223 -
8,748 (Bi7465 -
(3;615;342) 162,119. 3,453,223
(3,886,376} (553 8149) - (4--!440.-295']_
1,112,447 (824,114): - 288,333
(2,773,929)  (1,378,033). - (4,151962)
(2268,669)  (1,118849) 641,243 (2,746,274)
145,908 14,083 521 180,522
145,908 44,093 521 160,522
(1,131,871) {82,991} - {1,214,862)
(3:254,632) (1,187,748} 641,764 (3,800,615)
(6,162,108} - - (6,162,108)
19,712,080} - - [9,712,080)
(15,874,167) - - {15,874,167)
20,977,901 1,839,430 741,528 23,558,859
20,977,904 1,839,430 741,528: 23,558,859
20,977,901 1,839,430 749,528 23,558,858
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Annual repart and financial stateménts from 1 January 2023:to 31 December:2023

6. Reinsurance contract assets — continued

(b) Reconciliation of the measurement components of reinsurance contract balances - continued

‘Qpeéning réinsurance contract assets
‘Opening reifisurance contract liabilities:

Net b_alance-as atd Janliary 2023

‘CSM recognised for sénices régeived.

Changein: the. risk adjustmenit for: non-finaneial risk for the rlsk
‘expired’

Esxperience adjustments notrelated to future service

CHANGES THAT RELATE TO CURRENT SERVICES
Changes in estimates that adjust the CSM

Charnges n éstimates that adjust recoveries of lbsses on
onerous ynderlying contracts.
"‘CHANGES THAT RELATE 7O .FUTURE SERVICES

‘Charges. in fulfilment cashflows ~agjustment to the LIC.

Experence adjustments in: claims and other insurance service

‘expensgs in.LIC

CHANGES THAT RELATE TO:PAST SERVICES:

TOTAL NET EXPENSES FROM REINSURANCE
The effect of. and changes in ttma of time valtie:of maney-and
financial rigk

“FTOTAL INSURANCE FINANCE INCOME OR EXPENSE.
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME-

TOTAL CHANGES IN THE STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL
PERFORMANGE

Premiums. paid net cf ceding: comrmss:ons and other, direclly
sttriputabile’ gxpendes pa:ci

Recoverigs.from reinsurance

TOTAL CASH FLOWS

NET CLOSING: BALANCE

Closing reinsdrance contract assets:

Closinig reinsurance contract liabilities

‘Met balance as-at'31 December 2023

Estimates of ‘Risk CSM Tatal
Present value. adjustment.
of Future'Cash. ~  for non-
Flews. financial risk
20,977,901 1,839,430 741528 23.558:859°
20,977,901 1,839,430 741528 23,566,859
- - (2,280,708)  *(2:280,708)
. (154,597) < (154,597)
1,281,194 - - 1,281,194
1,281,194 (154,597)  {2.280,708f (1,154,141}
(1,861,496), (204,953)  2,085:449,
(180,578) 430,578 - -
(1,992,074) (74,375) 2,066,449
(1,768,758 (430,230} -~ (2,198,988)
#379,348 - (520,041) - (141,592)
(1,389,409). {951,571} - (2,340,580}
(2,100,290)  {1,180,143) (214,259)  (3,494,692).
87.864 2,807 10,022, 106,693
‘87,864 8,807 10,022 106,693
510,412 52,779 - 563,191
{1,502,014) {1,118,556) (204,237  /(2,824,808)
(3,570,501) - (3570,501)
{6,254,862) - - [6,284,862)
(9,825,362} - - (5825,362)
9,650,625 - 720,874 537,291 10,908,689
9,650,525 720,874 537,291 10,308,689
9,650,525 720,874 537,291 10,908,689
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7. Insurance contract liabilities

(8) Reconiciliation of the liability-for remaining coverage (LRC) and the liability for incurred claims-

icy

Opening insurance contract assets.
Opening insyrance confract iiabilities

Net balance as at 1 January 2022

CSM recongmzed forservices. prowded

Change in-risk adjustment for non-financiat risk for risk-
expired

‘Expeciedinsurance service expenses intumed:

Clains

-Ex;_:éhse's

‘Recovery of insurance deqiisition cash-flows

TOTAL INSURANCE REVENUE

Incurred insurance services:expenses

Ciaims

Expenses

Other movemenis refafed {6 cirrent: serwce

Amgartigation of insurance: acqumltlon cash flows
'Changes that relate to. pastsemce (changes in:fuiflment:
.cash flows.re’'LIC)

Changes iHat refale to ftire service

‘Losses and reversal of losses on onerous contracls - subsequenf
measuremenr

INSURANCE SERVICE EXPENSES.
TOTAL INSURANCE SERVICE RESULT

The effect of and changes in fime.of time value of money
and finangjal risk

TOTAL INSURANCE FINANGE INCOME OR EXPENSE

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

TOTAL CHANGES N THE STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL-

PERFORMANCE

Premium received

‘Claims and-other direttly attributable. expenses: pald
Insurance acquisition cash flows:
TOTAL CASH FLOWS

NET CLOSING BALANCE

Cloging insurance tantrast assets
Closing insurance contact lizbilifies

Het balance as at 31 December 2022

. LRC _ .
Excluding . Loss Lic Total
loss component
‘component:
(32,674,057) . 10,301,678 (22,372,379)
101,492,908 26,570,942 128,063,848
68,818,849 - 36,872,620 105,691,469
 (83,484,632) - (63,484,632)
13,203,338) - N (3,203,336)
{26,882,994) - {26,887,994)
{21,772:432) - - (21,772.432)
(5.110,561) - - 15;110:561)
187,193,630) - - (87,193,630)
(180,764,592) - - {180,764,592)
- (at,389) 43, 066, 132- 43,014,743
- (31,389} 40,776,796 40,745,408
. - 5.549:501 5949,501
- - (3,660,765) (3:660,165)
-87,193,630- - . ‘87,193,630
(5,637,238) (5,637,238)
. 175,072 - 175,072
- 175,672 : 175,072
“87,193;630 143,683 37,428,884 124,766,207
(83,570,962} 143683 37,428,894 (55,998,385}
{305,404) - 160,495. {204,909)
{305,404) - 100,495, {204,909}
4,924,132 - - (1;209,285) 714,847
{91,952,234). 143,683 36,320,104 (55;488;447)
189,483,205 -+ 199483205
- - (41,391.779) (41,391,779)
(91,855,844) - - (91,895,844)
107,587,361 S (A1,391,779) 66,195,582
84,453,976 143,683 31,800,045 116,398,604
(20,722,623) 143,683 11,578,019 {9,000,920)
105,176,509 . 20,222,926 125,390,524
84,453,976 143,683 31,800,945 116,298,604




RGCI Life Limited

Annual report and firiancial statements from 1 Janilary 2023 to 31 December 2023 .

7. Insurance contract liabilities - continued

{a) Reconciliation of the liability for remaining coverage. (LRC) and the Ilablhty for incurred claims.(L.IC)

- gontinued

‘Opening ingurance contract assets:
Opening insurance contract liabillties

Ne_t_"bai_ance-_as'__at_ 1 January 2023

CSM recongnized for services provided. _
Change in-risk adjusirment for non-financial risk for risk-
expired

Expectad insurance service-axpenses.incurred:

Claims

Expenses

Recovery of insurance-acquisition cash, fiows
TOTAL INSURANCE REVENUE

Incurred insurance services expenses.

Claims

Expenses

Otherimovetenis related to cuirent service.

Amortisation of insurance-acquisition cash’ ﬁDWS
Changes that rélate to"past service {changes in fulfilment
cash flows re-LIC) '

Changes that refate fo fulure service:

Losses.aid reversa! oFfosses oft erierous colracts - subisequent
meéasurement

INSURANCE SERVICE EXPENSES
TOTAL INSURANCE: SERVICE RESULT

Thé affect of and changes in fimeof time value-of money
and financlal. risk

TOTAL INSURANCE FINANCE INCOME OR EXPENSE

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

TOTAL CHANGES'IN-THE STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL
PERFORMANGE

Premium received

Claifng and other. directly attributable expenses paid
Insurance acquisition cash _ﬂows

TOTAL CASH FLOWS

NET CLOSING BALANCE

Closing insurance contract assets
Closing insurance contrast Jiabilities

Net balarice as at 31 December 2023

Exp_iudmg Loss Lic Total
loss component
coimponent
(20,722.623) 143,683, 11,578,018 (8,000,920}
105,176,598, - 20,222,926 125,389, 524
84,453,976 143,683 31,800,945 116,308,604
{64,062,367) - - 164,062,367}
{3,946,276) - {3,946,276)
{36,435,642) . - {36,435,642)
(31,448 538) -~ - (37,448,538},
{4,987,104) - . {4.987, 104}
(89,182,198) . - {89,182,198).
(193,626,483) - : (193,626,483)
- (265,466) 39,669,979 39,404, 511'
- (171.283). 34,352,988 d, 5.
- {94,784 : -
- : - (668, 953} (868 988)
89,182,198 - 89,182,198
- - (6,567,224) (5,567,224)
- -532,254 - 532,254
N 532,254 . 532,264.
89,182,198 266,787 34,102,755 123,551,740
(104,444,285} 266,787 34,102,755 .{20,074'-,744)'
1,160,687 489 185,005 1,346,481
1,160,987 489 185,006 1,346,481
(1,071,642} - 903,899 {167,743)
(104,354,841} - 267,276 35,191,669 (68,896,008)
205,577,225: - - 206,677,225
L - (46,445,578} (46:445,578).
(85,443,908) - - (89,443,908)
146,133,317 - (46,445,578) 59,687,739
96,232,352, 410,958 20,547,026 117,190,338:
18,135:910) 410,059 4282393 (13,442,558)°
114,368,262 - 16,264,634 130,632,895
96,232,352 410,959 20,547,026 117,190,238
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RCI Life Limited
Annual report:and financial statements from 1 Janary 2023 t0-31 Decernber 2023

7. Insurance contract liabilities — continued

(b). Reconciliation of the measurement components on insurance contract balances

Estimates. of . Risk. C5M “Total
Present value adjustment:
of Future Cash ~ fornon-

Flows financial risk

‘Opening-feifisurance contract assets (66,452,740) 2,701,145 47,289,216  (22,372,379)
‘Opening reinsurance contract liabilties 54,430,390 7,333,900 82, 299 B58 128,063,848
‘Net balance as at 1 January 2022 {8,022,350) 10,125,045 103,588,774 105,691,469
‘CSM recggnised for services received. - - (63,484,632) (63,484,632)
Change in tha risk: ad;ustment for non=fi nancial fisk-for the risk: ) (368,007) . (368,007}
&xpired- ) ARG : »OB IR,
‘Experierice adjustments nof refatéd to future service 13/316,421 - - 13316421
CHANGES THAT HELATE TO CURRENT SERVICES 13,316,421 (368,007)  (63,484,632) (50,536,219)
Contracts initially recognised inthe year (84,135,995) 4,891,989 79,244,006 -
Changes in-estimates. that-adjust ths CSM- (300,670) 1,093:991 (793,321)

Changes in estimates that adjust recaveries. of losses-on’

aneraus underlying'contracts 175234 {182) - 175072
CHANGES THAT RELATE TO FUTURE SERVICES (84,261,431} 5,985818: 78,450,685 175,072
Changes in fulfilment.cash flows — adjustment to the:LIC: (6:504,071] {575,607), - (7079.767)
Expérience adjustments in'claifis and other insurance service " R, L 1aan.
GXP'E.HSBS.-EH'Q_G 3,781,545 {2,338,0186) ; 1,442,529
CHANGES THAT RELATE TO PAST SERVICES (2,722,526} (2,914,713}, - _{5',637,23'_8.}
TOTAL NET EXPENSES FROM REINSURANCE: (73,667,536) 2703008 14,966,053  (55,998,385)
The effect of and changes in‘time of time vaiue of mongy and A s e e .
TOTAL INSURAMNCE FINANCE INCOME.OR EXPENSE 422,197 {:17-,1'1_3)_' (609,994} {204,908}
.DTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 1,256,386 {541:539) - 714,847 .
TOTAL CHANGES IN-THE STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL . ot ERnEG  TEE ARe AT
PERFORMANCE (71,088,952} 2,144,446 14,356,059  (55,488,447)
Premiums and premium tax recaived. 199,483,205 - -+ 199:483,205
Claims and othef insuranée servies expenses pa:d incliding i N TG DR p—
investment components {41,391,779) ) ) '(‘_1_'1 el ’7-.{9)
‘Insurance acquisitiori cash flows’ (91,895,844) - - (91,895,844)
“TOTAL CASH FLOWS 66,195,582 - . 66,195,582
NET CLOSING BALANCE {13,815,721) 12,269,492, 117,944,833 116,398,604
‘Closing reinsurance contract assets {68,979,421) 5:473;194 A4,505306  (9,000,920)
Clasing reinsurance contract Fabilities. 45,163,708 6,796,297 73,439,527 125,380,524
Net'balance as at 31 Decémbier. 2022 (13.815721) 12269492 117,044,833 116,308,604
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RC| Life Limited

Annual report and.financial statements from 1 January:2023 to 31 December 2023

7. Insurance contract liabilities —~ continued

(b) Reconciliation of the measurement components.on insurance contract balances

Opening.feinsurance contract assets

Opening reinsurance contract lfabilities

h;le:t_ b_alance_-_as_'ai_'-i. January 2023

CSM recogmsed for services received

Change in.the fisk agjustment for nan-financial risk-for the fisk
expired

Experience: adjustments not related ta future service
CHANGES THAT RELATE TO CURRENT SERVICES.
~Cantracts inttially recognised ir the year

‘Changes in estimates that adjust the CSM

“Changes In estimates that adjust retoveries of sses on
cnerous underlying contracts

CHANGES.THAT RELATE TO FUTURE SERVICES
Changes in filfilment cash flows — adjistmentita the LIG

Experience adjusiments.in-claims:and other Insurance service
expenses in LIC.

CHANGES THAT RELATE TO PAST SERVICES

" TOTAL NET EXPENSES FROM REINSURANCE
“The effect of and changes i in t|me of time value of money and
financial fisk

TOTAL INSURANCE FINANCE INCOME OR EXPENSE-
'OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

TOVAL CHANGES IN THE STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL
PERFORMANCE.

Premiiums. paid and premium tax received

Claims-and otherinsurance service-expenses pald, inghiding.
investiment: componenls

Insurance:acquisition cash. ﬂuws

TOTAL CASHFLOWS

NET CLOSING. BALANCE

Closing réinsurance.contract:assets

Closing reinsurange:contract liabiiities

Net balance as.at 3 Eie.gember;_'znza

‘Estimates of Risk csm Total
Presentvalile  -adjustinent '
of Futiré Cash farnon-.
Flows financial risk.
(58,979,421) 5,473,194 44505306  (9.000,920)
45183,700 5,796,297: 73,439,527 125,399,524
{13.815.721) 12,269,492 117,944,833 116,398,604
- (64,062,367) (64,062,367)
= {2,540,647) - (2540647
1,563,240 - 1,563,240
163,240 (2,540,647)  (64,062,367) (65,039,774}
(72,705,728} 2,765,676 69,950,052 -
4,798,880 {1,546:661) - (3, 252,219
516,536 15,718 - 532,264
(67,391,311) 1,224,732° 66,697,832 532,254
(4,045,316).  (1,082,602) < (5,127.918)
1,846,720 {2,286,026) - (438,306)
{2,198,588) {3,368,628) - (5,567,224}
(68,025,667). (4,684,542} 2,635,466 (70,074,744)
{915,899). 96,868 2,172,124 1,353,002
(915,899) 96,868 2,172,124 1,353,092
(614,200) 346,458 SN A2
(69,461,363) (4,242,232} 4,807,583 (6B;896,005)
205,577,225 - < 205577,225
(486,452,190 - -~ {46,452,180)
(89,443,911) . - {89,443,911)
69,681,124 - - 69,881,124
{13,590,364} 8,028,275 122,752,422 117,190,334
(57,965,397 2,864,305 44,662,534 (13,442,558)
44,379,033 5,163,977 81,089,883 130,632,893
(13,590,364) 8,028,276 122,762,423 117,190,335 .
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_Ro{Life Limited
Annudl reptrt and: finaricial statements from: 1 January 2023 to 31 Decerriber 2023

8. Insurance and other receivables

2023 2022
| _. | 5 €
Recelvables:arising from direct insurance-operations. S _
- due from group undertaking 25,180,215 19,360,252
Otherreceivables
--accrued interest from group. undertaking 860,131 472,877
- other dccrued interést income: 482,428 397,148
- dife-frorm-ethers 111,264 822,132

26,634,038 21052410

Insurance and other receivatiles are classified as-curfent assets.
9. Deferred Taxation
{a)} Movement in deferred tax

2023 2022 re-stated

€ £

At beginning of year 2,474,345 27,214

IFRS 17 fransition impact (Profit:and Loss) (21,023,648) -
Movement recorded during the year. _

- ‘in Profitand Loss{note.17) 24,027,443 87,937

-~ in.Other Comprehensive Income {note 13)° (1,063,746) 2,409,195

Atend of year 1,414,394 2474345

(b) Temporary differences

Deferredincome taxes aré calculated oni alltemporary differences Usifiga pnnmpal taxrafe of 35%:(2022: 35%). The anatyms
of deferred tax: (assets)mabmtles is-as follows::

2023° 2022ve-statéd

€ €
Temporary differences attributable to unrealised fair value 925,875 1,729,365
Temporary differences attributable to-othier provisions 68,945 . 69,580
Temporary: differences. atiributablé:to OCI impact onJFRS1 7 419,574 875,401
‘Balance-at 31 December 1,414,394, 2,474,345

The:following amounts are shown in the statement of financial position:

2023 2022 re-stated
£ £

Deferted tax asaet 1,414,394 2,474,345
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10. Equipment

Furniture, fixtures and fittings
Opening carrying.ameunt.
Depreciation charge
Closing:carrying amount

At 31 Deceniber
Cost
Accumulated depreciation:

‘Carrying amount

Furniture, fixtures ard fittings
-Opening camying .amount
Depreciation charge.

Closing carying‘amount

At 31 December.

Cost:

‘Accumillated depreciation

Carrying amount

11. Share.capital

Authorised ordinary shares

59,000 (2022: 59,000) ordinary shares of €100-each

Ordinary shares issued and fully paid.
69000 (2022:59,000) ordinary shates of €100.each

12. Capitat contribution

Balance at 1 January:
Additions

Balance at 31 December

During the yéar ender review, a capital contribufion of €4,539,065 was made on.the 4April 2023, (2022:

2023
€

5,900,000

2022
€

11,306
{3,769)

7,537

51,928
(44,391}

7,537
2023
€

7,537
(7,223)

‘314
51,928
(51,614)

314

2022
[

5,900,000

2023

€

6,052,515

4,539,965

2022

6,052,515

10,592,480

6,052,515

€6,052,515).
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13: Other reserves:

This resetve regords fair value changes on financial investments, representing unréatised-gains not available for distribution,

Balance at:1 January _ _
Gross-movement'in revaluation.(Note 4),
‘Gross movement in insurance and reinsurance
Deferred fax (Not&9).

Balance at 31 Decemiber

14. Insurance and other p_ayable‘s

Creditors arising out of direct insurance operations
- paréent Company
- group undertaking
- others.

-Accruals and.other payables

Offiér tax payables

2023
€

{4,465,994)
2,308,341

730,934 }

{1,063,746)

2022 ré-stated
€

8,226
{4,953,700)
{1,929,716)

2,408,196

{2,490,467)

(4,485,994}, _

2023

€

579,230
14,579,809

15,285.588

682,519

2022

577,281
7,103,995
27,003,047
529,270
487,107

31,441,952

36,600,700

The carrying amount disclosed:-above reasonably approximate fair value at the réporting date.

All-amaiinis. are payable.within éne year.

15. Investment income

investment income:

Financial investments interest income

interest income on loaris ahd receivables

Other interest income

Financial investments; amortisation.of discount {note 11)

Total inveéstment income

Investment expeases and charges
Amortisation-of premium: (note 4)
Impairment allowance.

Total investment expenses-and charges.

Total Investment Income.

2023
s

998,430

1,489,326
581,751

2022

c
745,506
ABG 672
211,645
95,842

5,572,895

1,535,665

(440,162)
{10,842)

(649,826
(108,388)

(451,004)

(758;213)

5,424,891

777,452
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16, Expenses by nature

2023 2022
Annual statutory audit 69,431 56,493

17. Employee bengfit expenses
2023 2022,
.53 £
‘Wages and salaries 818,055 716,565
“Sociat security 46,305 38,676

‘Total employee benefit expenses 864,360 755,232

The average number of persons employed during the year was:

Manageﬁalf _
Technical 3 4
Administrative: 14 10

-
N

Total Investment income 18 16
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18. Income tax expense

{a) Current tax expense forthe year
Current tax expense
Deferred tax éxpenses

Total income tax expense

{b) Tax recorded in Other Comprehensive Income:(Note 9)

‘Deferréd tax maoverent

Totat {ax crediticharge to Other Comprehensive Income

Deferred tax movement

Totat tax eredit/charge to Prafit and Lass

(d) Reconciliation of tax expense:

Profit befare tax

Tax charge-at Malta's statutory income tax rate of 35%
Unrecognised deferred tax flom. prior yéar

19. Risk management framework.

Capital management objectives, policies and approach

2023 2022 re-stated:

€ €
45,685,225 19,076,184
(21,027,443) (37,937)
24,657,782 19,038,247
2023 2022 re-stated

€ €
{1,063,746) 1,729,365
{1,063,746) 1,729,365
2023 2022 re-stated

€ €
(21,027,443) 37,037
(21,027,443) 37,937
2023 2022 re-stated

€ €
70,461,647 54,394,993
24,661,576 19,038,247
(3,795 -
24,657,782 19,038,247

The Gompany has established the following capital managemént objectives. policies and approach to. managing the risks

that affect its capital position:

» Tomaintain the requiired level of stablllty of the Coripariy: thereby providing a degree of secirity 1o policyholders,
« ‘Toaliocate capital efficisritly and support the- development of business by ensuring that returnis-on capital émployed mest.

the requirements of its ‘shiareholders.

« To retain financial flexibility by maintaining stronig: liquidity and diccéss 1o.a range of capﬁal markets.
To align'the profile of assets and liabilities taking account: of fisks inherent in the business.
To maintain financial strength to. support new: business growth and to satisfy the requirements of the policyholders,

-regulators and stakeholders.

o To maintain §trong credit ratings and healthy. capltal ratics in-order {o support ifs business thjectives and maximise

shareholders value.
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19. Risk management framework - continued

The Company's capital management policy fq‘r--_it_s insurance business. is 10 hold ‘sufficient capital to cover the. statutory
reguirements based on the MFSA Directives, including any additional amounts required by the Malta Finahcial Services
‘Authority, the Regitator. The Company was compliant with-the regutatory solvency requirements: throughout the financiat
year,

The Solvency It Directive (2009/138/EC) came into farce on Tst January 2098, with new regulatory requirerments that dictate-
the capital-required to-service the risks-the Comipany is currently undertaking. ‘Solvency Il-also. outiines how. the own funds

;shall be derived: by converting the Statement of Financial Position from an IFRS perspective to ‘one where. assets: and

iabilities are measured.in line with their underlying.economic value; As ofthis date; the solvency calculations:undeér Solvency
Lregime will- no longer be applicable. '

“The Directors are actively involved in the implementation of the ‘Solvency Il rules.and these are highly embedded in the
Company's operations. Regular monitoring of the SCR is considered crucial and a Capital Management and Dividend Policy
has-been put in. place: to describe the principles goveming capital managemient and dividend. distribution of the Company,
thait s, the process to be followed priorto effecting any decision impacting the: capital position of RCI Life Limited thereby
ensuring that the Company has sufficient levels of capital at all times. to he able to service existing.and foreseeable risks,

The MCR for the Comipany. based on the audited SCR caleulations as at 31 December 2023 is €16,058:179(2022:
€16,113,192). The.Company has complied with thié ¢apital and solvericy requirements as stipulated‘in e rules issued by
the MFSA. Going forward, the.Company:is alse expected to cortinue mieeting the' Solvericy-1i requirements, based on the
projected SCR calculations included in the 2023 ORSA report. In the case of any solvericy gap, the Directors: have put in
place & capital plan aimed to ensure that the Company will have adequate ‘own funds’ to.meet the required SCR..

20, Insurance and financial risk

The Company issues contracts that transfer insurance andfor financial risks. This section summarises these risks and the
way i which the Company manages them.

(a} Insurance risk

The principal risk the Company faces under insirance contracts. is. hat the actuai claime and, benefit payments or timing.
thereof, differ from expectations. This is influenced by the frequency-of claims, severity of claims and-actual henefits. paid.
Therefore, the' objective of the Company is fo ensure that sufficient reserves are available to cover these liabilities: The-
contracts provide insurance cover to customers 1o repay outstanding financial commitments:in respect of car leasefloan.
agreements.up to specified maxiinum amoeunts in the:event of death.

The abiove risk expesure:is mitigated by diversification of different classes of business acrass a large portfslio-of insurance.
contracts: and geographical areas. The. variability of fisks is also improved by careful selection and implementation-of
underwriting strategy guidelines and claim review policies, as well.as:the use of réinsuranice arrangements.

The Company prinicipalty undérwrites payment protection insurance covering death 1o elients of its uitimate parent company,
RCI:Barique-S:A, on a direct basis.. Risks underthese insurance paolicies-on average span over a period of four years. As-
atthe end of the year, the‘Company was operatingin Germany, France, ltaly, Spain, Portugal and Austria.

The. variability of risks is improved by careful selection and. implementation -of underwriting. sirategies, The Company's
business is underwritten through anvintermediary's network consisting of Group compariies. [nteriial underwriting guidefines-
are in.place to-enforce; appropriate risk-selection criteria and are reinforced by controls that aie i piace at-a Group level,
The cover provided is limited by factors such as age, term of the Ieaselioan, benefitamountand cause of death. Furthermeore,
‘strict-claim review poficies 10 assess all fiew: arid‘ongoing claims, regular detsited review of claims handling procedures and’
frequent investigation:of possible fraudulent claims are all policies and procedures put in place to reduce the risk expostre
of the Company, The Company further enforces a palicy of actively maraging-and premptly pursuing claims,.if order to
feduce:its exposure to Unpredictable futuré developments that can negatively impact the business. .An independent actuary
determines the life insurance contract liabilities at each reporting date.”
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20. Insurance-and financial risk - continued
{a} Insurance risk - continued

For PP| business, the-Company purchases réinsurance as part of its risk mitigation pragram. The Company has placed is
reinsurance. treaty with ‘ari AA- rated Gompany, which has been actively monitored. Reinsurance ceded is placed on &
proportional basis. This quota-share reinsurance is taken-out o reduce the overall exposure of the Company to ail classes
of business in all countries. Amounts recoverable from. the reinsurer are estimated.in @ manner tonsistent with the
autstanding claims provision-and aré in accordance with the relrisurance contracts, Aithough the Campany has reinsurance
arfangements; itis not relleved of its direct obligations 1o its policyhotders and thus a eredit exposure exisis with respect to
ceded insurance, o the extent that the réinsurer is Unable to reet ifs obligations. assumed undes such reinsurance

-agreements. ' ' ' ' '

‘On'the gtherhand, the Company:has assessed the risks being underwritten through the reinsurancetreaty over thie historical
periad;-and based on that, the:progressivé- disengagement [(over 5.yearsy fiom thé reinsurarice in guota share with AXA o
PP programs, approved by the Board of Directors in2017 has been implémerited according to plar over the.past four years

-and has ended-in 2021 with a final quota share minimum at10%. Starting.the generation of 2022, no reinsurance quiota-
share has Yieen recognized for PP| portfolio. ' '

Key assumptions
The principal assumptiori underlying the liability estimates is that the:Carripany's futuré claims development will follow-a
sififlar pattern to past €laims development experience within-the RCI Group.

The Company has therefore assumed an ultimate-loss ratio- in order fo estimate its total Lizbility for Incurred Claims,
separately for curréntand past ocourrence. reporfing periads, dccording to the ‘accounting standards IFRS17, first time
implermented starting 1** of January 2023, o

Sensitivities scenarios.

Scendrio. 3 -

Central
Scenario

Scenario 1 -

Discount:Rate

Scenario 2 =

Claims

New
‘Production

“Total Insurance Revenues
Total insurance Services

INSURANCE ‘SERVICE RESULT
Net financial result

fnvestment income
PROFIT BEFORE TAX"

OTHER COMPREMENSIVE
INCOME BEFORE TAX

€:

193,626,483

(127,046,431)

€

193,626,483
(127,046,431)

190,651,674

(133,676,437).

187,269,080

(123,334,134}

{1,240,296)

5,121,891

66,580,052
(1,240,296)

5:121,891

56,975,237
(1,222,366}
5, 121,891

63,934,945
(1,047,510)
- 5,121,891

70,461,647

730,934.

70,461,647

288,436

60,874,762

1,022,585

68,009,327

731,222
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20. Insurance-and finangial risk - continuted
{a} Insurance risk - contirued
Sensitivities scenafios — continued

Scenario 1.~ Discount Rate: o . _
> Market— [nterést rate shock: This includes a +100bp in discount rate curve for each projéction:year.
>  Badsed on the'RC) Life-aiccounting methedology, the effect of financial risk-and changes.in financial risk is reported
in Other Comprehensivé Income (“OCI"). Therefore, the drop'in OCI by €442;498 has been reporied in the Balance
Sheet'for RCT Life.as:an impact of ingreasing: the-discouns rate: as of the: reporing -périod: '

Scenario 2 - Claims:. S
> Insurance fisk shoek: This is & permanent increase of the clait fréquency by +20% for the-Death Coverage.
» Theshock:has been applied on the central scenario for the evelution of claims within the: freporting period as well
“as-remaining coverage in the futtire: o _ o
»  Thesensitivity represents one of the Adverse — Insurance risk scenarios reported inthe ORSA 2023,
> Volatility of expected claims represents theé most significant risk.for RGI Life.
i

‘No breaching of risk appetite rule was observed on profit (< 20% of Geritral Scénario), but the negative impact of

(€9,586,885) (-13.6%) cdused the:Alert threshold 1o be exceeded (<10%) during the reporting period.

Scenario 3 ~New Production: _ - N |
> Regulatory shock: This.is:a'deciease of the riew production of 2023 by. 15% for PRI business. _
»- Theshock has beeri-applied onthe central scenario of the PPI contract produiction, uridenwritteri in 2023,
»> The sensitivity represents the potential impact-on the new business-production dué to' regulatory pressure on PP
¥ No breaching of risk appetite rute was.observed on profit (<20% of Central Scenario), and with a negative impact
‘of (€2,452,320).(:3.5%) it did not reaich the Alert ttirestiold levef (< 10%).during the reporting period.

{b) Financial risks

The Company.is'exposed o financial risk that the proceeds from its financial assets are not sufficierit to fund the obligations.

arising from its insurance risk,

The mostimpartant:companents of this financial risk are market tisk (including interest rate risk, credit risk and liquidity fisk.

The risk managenment policies émployed by the Company to manage these risks are discussed below.
(1) Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that ane party to-a financial instrument will cause:a financial loss 16 the ctheirparty by failing to discharge.
an-obligation. S

Thie Company writes PPl risks for the Reriault group through' various group: eritities. The Company therefore has no-
counterparty insurance credit risk to-parfies outside the:Renault group thereby reducirig substantially its credit risk.
The Company invests in Erench, ialian and-Spanish government bords, EIB bonds, and-carporste honds. with: reputable

counterparties and holds deposits with RC( Bangue S.A., a'BBB rated financial. instifution licensed and regulated by the
French -Bangue de France, a member:of the Renault Group. o
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20. Insurance and financial risk- continued

(b} Finaneial risks- continued

(1) Credit risk- continued

The pimary. d_ebt_or.i?.,fa the Company's parent undertaking, & BBB rated financial institution licensed. and régulated b_y.*th'e;

‘French Banque-de Frarice.

Reinsurance’is placed witha counterparty that has an AA- credit rating, At éach reporting date, management perfarmis an

assessment of creditworthiness: of thie reinsufer and uUpdates the feinsurance purchase stratégy, ascertairing suitable
allowance for impairent.. '

“The:credit rigk in respect-of customer balances incurred on nen-payment of premiums of conitributions will oniy persist during

the grace period specified in the policy document or trust deed ‘until-éxpiry, when the palicy is either paid up:or-terminated,

Corninission paid to intermediaries are only setiled once premium has been received thereby reducing the overall credit
‘exposure.

Credit éxpostre

" The table below shows the maximum e;‘;’poSu_‘réi’td- credit Tisk for the comparients.of the: Statement of Financial Position and

itefris such as future commiitments.

31 December:

2023 2022 re-stated
Notes € (5

83,500,000 77,000,000
98,064,260 87,075,681
10,908,689 23558859
20,737,963 14,445,466
83,518,612 83.791,741

‘l.oans-and receivables _ _
Financial investments - debt securities-
Relhsurarice tontract assets
‘Insurance and other receivables
‘Cash.and cash equivalents

0 bt

Total credit risk exposure 206,729,525 285871749

Credit-exposure by credit rating

The table below provides information regarding the: credit risk-exposure of the Company at 31 December by classitying
assets according to-the Standard and Pooi’s credit ratings. {or-eguivalent) .of the counterpatties. AAA is the highest possible:
fating. Assets that fall outside the range of AAA to BBB-are classified as not rated.

31 December 2023 ) _ _ Neither past due nor impaired
AN AA- A+/AIA- BBB/BBB+ Notrated -Total-
€ € ' € . € € €
- - - 83,500,000 83,500,000
e 4736534 11,983,218 49,175922° 32,168,587 98,064,260
securities - e ; : L

Reinsurance contract assets. - 10,508,689 - - - 10,908,689
Insurance receivables 18,784 22,191 263,184 20,314,426 _ &500 20,737,963
Cash-and-cash equivalents. Lo - - 77,017,000 6,500,912 83,518,612

Loans and receivables:
Financial investments - debt

Total 4785318 22814088 49439416 23;111,181 6,509,812 206,729,524
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20, Insurance and financial risk- contifriued.

{1) Creditrisk= continued:

Credit exposuré by credit rating~ continued.

31 December 2022 re-stated

Neither past due:norimpaired

AA AR- A+/AIA-  BBB/BBB+ Not rated Tota)

o € € '3 € € €

Loans.and receivables - - - 77,000,000 - 77,000,800
__:éli’;]"ii';;'““'e"”tmems - debt 4573900 0385338 46023897 27,092,546 - 87:075,681
Reinsurance contract assets - 23,558,850 - - 23,556,859
Ifsurance réceivablgs. 18.836 22,252, 243,958 14,151,520 8900 14,445,465
Cash and cash equivaients . - - B8770,188 16,021,553 83,791,741
Total 4,592,736 32966449 46,267,855 187014254 15030453 285871749

Impaired financial assets

For assets to be classified as ‘past-due and impaired' contractual‘payments must be in arredrs for nore thary 80 days.

At 31 December 2023, £209,640-(2022; £198,798) af the: Company s-assets were-considered to be-impaired in dccordance

with IFRS.9 'Financial Instruments’.

{2) Liquidity risk

Liquidity- risk is the risk that. an entity will encounter. diff culty in- meeting obllgatlons assaciated with firandial instruments. In
respect.of caiastraphnc events there is also a I:qu:dliy risk associated: with the fiming. differences between gross cash ouf-

flows and-expected reinstrance recoveries:

Thefallowing policies-and procedures are in place 1o mitigate the Company's expasure to liquidity risk:

+ A Company liguidity risk policy. setiing out the: assessment and’ determination of what. constltutes ||qu:d|ty risk for the
Company, Compliance: with the. polu::y is monitored and ‘exposures and- breacties -are reporied-to the Company
investment committee. The policy is regularly reviewed for pertinence and for ¢hanges.in the risk:énvironment,

+  Sétguidelines on assét allocations, portfol:o limit:structures and- maturity profiles of assets,.in erderto ensure sufficient

funchng availabile to mestinsurance-and invéstment contracts obligations,

The following table indicates the expected fiming of cash flows arising from the:Company's Habiliti

31 December 2023

01 year 1-5 years >5 years ‘Total

€ € e R

Insurance contract liabilities 52,920,594 63,669,853 599,891 117,190,338

Insurance-and other payables 26,346,756 5,095,196 - 31,441,952

income tax payable 45,674,939 - - 45,674,999

_TDIE!I “111,085,20% 44,158,642 39,063,446 1 94,307_’_."289
31 Decembier 2022 re-stated o

D-1.year 1-5 years. =5 yeais Total

€ € € .. €

Insurance contract liabilities. 52,563,064 63,239,702 595,838 116:398,604

Insurance and other payables 19,511,654 16,606,300 482, 746 36,600,700

Incaime tak payahle: 22,251 585 - 22,251,555

Deferred taxation 21,023,648 - - 21,023,648

Totat 101,586,391 55,405,834 39282281 196,274,506
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20. Irisurance and financial risk- continued

(b} Financial rigks- continued
(3) Market risk

Market rigk is the risk that the fair value orfuture cash flows of a fihancial instrument will fluctyate because of changes in
‘market prices; Market risk-comprises three types of risk: foreign exchange rates (currency risk), market interest rates (lnterest
rate: risk) and.market prices (price risk), The Company invests in fixed income secutities and deposnts thereby exposing
‘itself to interest rate risk. The Company's.assets and liabilities are all.denominated in.Euwro thereby leaving the Company
with no- cufrericy exposura.

Interest rate fisk is the risk that the value of future.cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in
market interest rates.
{4) Interest rate risk:
Floating rate instruments expose the Company ta cash-flow interest rlsk ‘whereas fixed interest. rate. instruments expose the

Company to fair vaiue'interest risk. The Company invests prlrnanly in ﬁxed interest rate bonds, !ong-term and shortterm
deposits-which are re-priced af renewal of the deposit.

The Company s.net exposure 1o. interest rate risk is-not considered to be material in view of the-factthat ife inferest rates of
the financial investments are fixed. Accordlngly. a sens;tmty analysis forinterest rate risk disclosing how proﬁt or loss and

equlty would havé been affected by changes in inerest rates that-were reasonably. possible at reporting date is not deemed
necessary.

21. Cash generated from operating activities

2023 2022 - restated

Note: € €
Adjustment for: " N
Depraciation of fixed assets 10 7,223 3,769
Intergstincome {4,984,912) (1.691,038)
-Amoriisation of premiurm an financial invesiments: 4b " (141,588) 553,984
lmpairmient allowancs. 4b £ 209,640 198,798
Movemenis in iterns-on the-Statement of Financial Position: L L
Reinsurance confract-assets 12,650,170 19,674,784
JInsurance ard other receivables (5,10%,086) {6,734,381)
Insurance contract liabilities. 1,522,667 B777.420.
Insurance and othier payables (5,158,748) (17,662,606}
Cash generated from operating activities 69,457,003 58,515,723

22, Contingencies and commitments:

The Conipany-does not have any contingencies or commitmenits at'the-repoiting. date.
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23. Related party. disclosures
(a) Transactions with related parties
The Company enters into transactions with its parent, group undertakings and key management personnél in the riormal
course of business; The sales to and purchases:from'related parties are made at nofmal market prices.
Details of significant trarisactions carried out during the-year with.related parfics are as follows:
2023 2022
L _ _ Notes £ £
(a) Sale-of insurance contracts and other services
Investment incorie from parent 16 3,992,715 698,317

(b) Purchase of insurance and other services

Commission paid o group undertaking 88,474,384 85,891,935
Claim handling fee paid to-group undertakirig 4,808,721 1,811,670
Recharge of expenses for back-office services provided 3,001,860 2,713,718

Dividends paid 24 41,272,406 40,350,098

Director's fees have been disclosed in Note 17. The Chisf Financial Officer-and the Operations Manager areconsidered by
the Company fo be Key Manageinent-Persoinel. The total payments to Ke_y“Mana_g_Ement Personal were €117,600 (2022:

€135,683).

{b) Balances with related parties

Repeiv‘a_hl'es.'ﬁqmj and p_ayab(__es to related parties are as féllows:

_ 2023 2022 re-stated
"y _ . ‘Notes € €
‘Receivables from relsdted parties _
‘Receivable ariging out of direct insurance opérations

- gfoup undertakings.

Deposits held.with intermediate parent-

Interest income: due from intermiediate parent
Cash. and cagh equivalents held with-intermediate parent

19,386,504 13,568,540
83,500,000 77,000,000

860,131 472,877
77,017,700 68,770,188

W o 6

Paviables to refated parties )

Payable-arising out of direct insurance operations. .

- group undertakings 18. 14,408,240 7,103,995
-~ parent.company. 18 657,230 577,281

Leans and receivables are unsecured and earn-an average fixed interest of 3% {2022: 1.6%) (Note 5). Deposits held with’
Group undertakings earn an average fixed interest of 3% (2022: 0:3%) (Note 3).. All other outstanding balances &t the
Teporting date are unsecured.and interest free. Settlemient will take place in cash. Thete was-no-provision for doubtiul. debts

at the reporting:date and no bad.debt expense inthe year {2022:Nil).

24, Dividends 2023 2022
o € €
Dividends-paid on ordinary shares nat 41,272,406 40,350,008

Dividénds per ordinary-share 699,53 683,90
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
To the members of RCI Life Limited

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of RCI Life Limited (the Company), set out on pages 6
to 51, which comprise the statement of financial position as at 31 December 2023 and the
Income statements, statement of comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including
material accounting policy information.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial
position of the Company as at 31 December 2023, and of its financial performance and its cash
flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as
adopted by the EU (EU IFRSs) and have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of
the Companies Act (Cap. 386).

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for
the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company
in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of
the financial statements in accordance with the Accountancy Profession Directive issued in
terms of the Accountancy Profession Act (Cap. 281) (APA) in Malta, and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the IESBA Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most
significance in our audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. Our description of
how our audit addressed the matter is provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
financial statements section of our report, including in relation to these matters. Accordingly, our
audit included the performance of procedures designed to report to our assessment of the risk
of material misstatement of the financial statements. The results of our audit procedures,
including the procedures performed to address the matters below, provide the basis for our
audit opinion on the accompanying financial statements.

Mazars Malta
Certified Public Accountants
VAT Reg No. MT15296002
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
To the members of RCI Life Limited (continued)

Key Audit Matters (continued)

Insurance liabilities
Risk description

At 31 December 2023 the Companies had liability for remaining coverage and liability for
incurred claims as follows:

Liability for Remaining Coverage 96,232,352
Loss Component 410,959
Liability for Incurred Claims 20,547,026

The Liability for incurred claims is measured as the total of the expected fulfilment cash flows
relating to insurance events that occurred by the financial reporting date, which comprise
estimates of future cash flows, adjusted to reflect the time value of money and a risk adjustment
for non-financial risks. We have considered the estimate of future cash flows as a key audit
matter in view of the subjectivity surrounding the determination of the estimate, that is based on
claims data and an actuarial methodology which involves significant assumptions. Due to the
degree of such inherent estimation uncertainty underlying the estimate of future cash flows, the
amounts recognised in the statement of financial position may be different to those eventually
settled. Those differences may be material.

The liability for remaining coverage is measured as the total of the expected fulfilment cash
flows which comprise estimates of future cash flows within the contract boundary, adjusted to
reflect the time value of money and the associated financial risks, and risk adjustment for non-
financial risks. We have considered the measurement of liability for remaining coverage as a
key audit matter in view of the nature and subjectivity of the estimate, and its overall inherent
estimation uncertainty. The subjectivity involved relates mainly to the judgement involved in the
selection of actuarial assumptions. Due to the degree of such inherent estimation uncertainty,
the ultimate total settlement value may be different from the amounts provided, and the amount
of the Contractual Service Margin maybe different from the amounts recognized as profit in the
future. Those differences maybe material.

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

As part of our procedures, with the assistance of our actuarial specialists, we evaluated the
appropriateness of the Company’s assumptions applied in estimating the future cash flows and
the resulting estimate, for substantially all the liability for incurred claims and remaining
liabilities. We have remeasured the risk adjustment and discounting rate as per our expectations
based on industry knowledge and experience and compared these with the Company’s results.
In relation to claims data and other elements used in the estimates, we evaluated a sample to
assess their relevance and reliability based on the information available to the Company at the
financial reporting date.

Mazars Malta
Certified Public Accountants
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
To the members of RCI Life Limited (continued)

Key Audit Matters (continued)

Insurance liabilities (continued)
How our audit addressed the key audit matter (continued)

We have also assessed the relevance of disclosures relating to the Company’s liability arising
from insurance contracts presented in the note 7 to the financial statements.

Other Information

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the annual report, other than the financial statements and the auditors’
report thereon. Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover this information, and we
do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon other than our reporting on other legal
and reporting requirements. In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

With respect to the Directors’ Report, we also considered whether the Directors’ Report includes

the disclosures required by Article 177 of the Maltese Companies Act (Cap. 386). Based on the

work we have performed, in our opinion:

» the information given in the directors’ report for the financial year for which the financial
statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements; and

= the directors’ report has been prepared in accordance with the Maltese Companies Act
(Cap.386).

In addition, in light of the knowledge and understanding of the company and its environment
obtained in the course of the audit, we are required to report if we have identified material
misstatements in the directors’ report. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the Directors

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements that give a true and
fair view in accordance with IFRS as adopted by the EU, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to
liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the company’s financial
reporting process.

Mazars Malta
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
To the members of RCI Life Limited (continued)

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

= |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

= Consider the extent of compliance with those laws and regulations that directly affect the
financial statements, as part of our procedures on the related financial statements items. For
the remaining laws and regulations, we make enquiries of directors and other management,
and inspect correspondence with the regulatory authority as well as legal correspondence.
As with Fraud, there remains a higher risk of non-detection of other irregularities (whether or
not these relate to an area of law directly related to the financial statements), as these may
likewise involve collusion, forgery, international omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal controls.

= Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control.

= Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the directors.

Mazars Malta
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
To the members of RCI Life Limited (continued)

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements (continued)

= Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going concern basis of
accounting and based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the company to cease to continue as a going
concern.

= Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the audit committee regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the audit committee with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated the audit committee, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law
or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because
the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
Under the Maltese Companies Act (Cap. 386) we are required to report to you if, in our opinion:
= We have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.

= Adequate accounting records have not been kept, or that returns adequate for our audit
have not been received from branches not visited by us.

» The financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
To the members of RCI Life Limited (continued)

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements (continued)
We have nothing to report to you in respect of these responsibilities.

Additionally, the financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with the
requirements of the Insurance Business Act (Cap. 403).

Use of audit report

This report is made solely to the company’s members as a body in accordance with the
requirements of the Companies Act CAP 386 of the laws of Malta. Our audit work has been
undertaken so that we might state to the company’s members those matters that we are
required to state to them in an audit’'s report and for no other purpose. To the full extent
permitted by law we do not assume responsibility to anyone other that the company’s members
as a body for our audit work, for this report or for the opinions we have formed.

Appointment

We were appointed by the shareholders as auditors of RCI Life Limited on 10 September 2020,
as for the year ended 31 December 2020. The period of total uninterrupted engagement is four
years.

Consistency with the additional report to those charged with Governance
Our opinion on our audit of the financial statements is consistent with the additional report to the
audit committee required to be issued by the Audit Regulation (as referred to in the Act);

Non-audit services
We have not prgvided any of the prohibited services as set out in the accountancy profession

Thig" copy of the audit report has been signed by
Anthony Attard (Partner) for and on behalf of

Mazars Malta

Certified Public Accountants

Office address:

The Watercourse, Level 2,

Mdina road, Zone 2, Central business district,
Birkirkara CBD2010 — Malta

19 April 2024
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